Public Document Pack

gy .
Hampshire

<) County Council
NOTICE OF MEETING
Meeting Health and Wellbeing Board
Date and Time Thursday, 10th December, 2020 at 10.00 am
Place Virtual Teams Meeting - Microsoft Teams

Enquiries to members.services@hants.gov.uk

John Coughlan CBE
Chief Executive
The Castle, Winchester SO23 8UJ

FILMING AND BROADCAST NOTIFICATION
This meeting is being held remotely and will be recorded and broadcast live via the
County Council’s website.

AGENDA
1. APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE
To receive any apologies for absence received.
2. DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST

All Members who believe they have a Disclosable Pecuniary Interest in
any matter to be considered at the meeting must declare that interest
and, having regard to Part 3 Paragraph 1.5 of the County Council's
Members’ Code of Conduct, leave the meeting while the matter is
discussed, save for exercising any right to speak in accordance with
Paragraph 1.6 of the Code. Furthermore all Members with a Personal
Interest in a matter being considered at the meeting should consider,
having regard to Part 5, Paragraph 4 of the Code, whether such interest
should be declared, and having regard to Part 5, Paragraph 5 of the
Code, consider whether it is appropriate to leave the meeting while the
matter is discussed, save for exercising any right to speak in accordance
with the Code.

3. MINUTES OF PREVIOUS MEETING (Pages 3 - 10)
To confirm the minutes of the previous meeting.
4. DEPUTATIONS

To receive any deputations notified under Standing Order 12.



10.

CHAIRMAN'S ANNOUNCEMENTS
To receive any announcements the Chairman may wish to make.

MENTAL HEALTH AND WELLBEING RECOVERY UPDATE (Pages
11 - 34)

To receive an update on the work currently taking place to support the
mental health and wellbeing of Hampshire residents, including work
linked to COVID-19 Recovery.

LIVING WELL THEME FOCUS (Pages 35 - 52)

To receive an update on the priorities and progress of the Living Well
strand of the Health and Wellbeing Strategy.

MODERNIZING OUR HOSPITALS: IMPACT ON POPULATION
HEALTH IN RELATION TO THE STRATEGY (Pages 53 - 76)

To receive an overview of the Hampshire Together: Modernising our
Hospitals and Health Services programme in relation to the impact on
population health.

HAMPSHIRE SAFEGUARDING CHILDREN PARTNERSHIP ANNUAL
REPORT (Pages 77 - 108)

To receive an annual report from the Hampshire Safeguarding Children
Partnership (HSCP) providing an independent analysis of the
safeguarding services provided to children and young people in
Hampshire over 2019/20 and a summary of the work undertaken to
deliver the HSCP’s Business Plan and priorities over the next year.

FORWARD PLAN FOR FUTURE MEETINGS (Pages 109 - 112)

To review anticipated future business items and progress on actions for
the Health and Wellbeing Board.

ABOUT THIS AGENDA:

On request, this agenda can be provided in alternative versions (such as
large print, Braille or audio) and in alternative languages.

ABOUT THIS MEETING:

The press and public are welcome to observe the public sessions of the
meeting via the webcast.



Agenda Iltem 3

AT A VIRTUAL MEETING of the Health and Wellbeing Board of HAMPSHIRE
COUNTY COUNCIL, on Thursday, 1st October, 2020

Chairman:
* Councillor Liz Fairhurst

* Councillor Judith Grajewski Councillor Zilliah Brooks
* Councillor Patricia Stallard Councillor Roy Perry
Councillor Ray Bolton
*Present

Co-opted members

Dr Barbara Rushton, Graham Allen, Simon Bryant, Steve Crocker, Dr Peter Bibawy, Dr
David Chilvers, CliIr Philip Raffaelli, Tricia Hughes, Christine Holloway, Julie Amies,
Alex Whitfield, Rob Cole, Dr Rory Honney, Dr Matt Nisbet, Nick Tustian and Anja
Kimberley

Councillors Keith Mans and Roger Huxstep were present with the agreement of the
Chairman.

124. APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE
Apologies were noted from the following Members:

Mark Cubbon, Co-opted Deputy for Provider Representative: Acute Health
Trusts

Michael Lane, Police and Crime Commissioner for Hampshire

Ron Shields, Provider Representative: Community and Mental Health

Sue Harriman, Co-opted Deputy for Provider Representative: Community and
Mental Health

David Radbourne, NHS England (Wessex)

Amanda Lyons, Co-opted Deputy for Wessex Local Area Team of NHS England
Dr Sarah Schofield, West Hampshire Clinical Commissioning Group

Dr Nicola Decker, North Hampshire Clinical Commissioning Group

Cllr Anne Crampton, District/Borough Council Member Representative

125. DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST

All Members who believe they have a Disclosable Pecuniary Interest in any
matter to be considered at the meeting must declare that interest and, having
regard to Part 3 Paragraph 1.5 of the County Council's Members’ Code of
Conduct, leave the meeting while the matter is discussed, save for exercising
any right to speak in accordance with Paragraph 1.6 of the Code. Furthermore
all Members with a Personal Interest in a matter being considered at the meeting
should consider, having regard to Part 5, Paragraph 4 of the Code, whether such
interest should be declared, and having regard to Part 5, Paragraph 5 of the
Code, consider whether it is appropriate to leave the meeting while the matter is
discussed, save for exercising any right to speak in accordance with the Code.

There were no declarations of interest.

Page 3



126.

127.

128.

129.

MINUTES OF PREVIOUS MEETING

The minutes of the 2 July meeting were reviewed agreed.

DEPUTATIONS

There were no deputations received.

CHAIRMAN'S ANNOUNCEMENTS
The Chairman made the following announcements:

e The Chairman made Members aware of the Public Health, Adult Social
Care, and Hampshire and Isle of Wight COVID19 Updates that have
recently been shared at the HASC. The Board is continuing to follow
along closely and the Weekly COVID19 Hampshire Update is a useful
source for the most up to date information.

e The Healthy Homes Survey has now been circulated as part of the
Healthier Communities theme supported by the Board and the Chairman
requested that Members share extensively with colleagues and
organizations.

e A report from the Autism Partnership Board analysing the data on the
incidents of people with autism across HIOW has also been circulated
and will likely be of interest to Members.

STRATEGIC LEADERSHIP: HEALTH INEQUALITIES AND RISKS

The Board received a report from the Director of Public Health at Hampshire
County Council and the Strategic Leadership Sponsor for the Board. Members
received an overview on health inequalities and risks, outcomes, approach in
relation to the impact of Covid-19.

The Integrated Care System plans going forward will consider inequalities and
differences in health across population to best determine where to focus efforts.
Similarly, the Health and Wellbeing Board strategy aims to address inequalities
and gaps based on age, gender, ethnicity, access to healthcare, disparities, etc.
alongside the impact of Covid to work with communities to provide support and
address poor outcomes.

In response to questions, Members heard:

Sophisticated risk assessment profiles considering age, ethnicity, gender, and
underlying health issues are used to protect NHS colleagues and determine
where and how they work.

Healthwatch colleagues understand the consideration of excess deaths and the
importance of collaboration and support for the council in addressing any issues.
Current number of excess deaths are low and will need to be reviewed over a

Page 4



longer period. Resources will be circulated to Board Members following the
meeting.

The effect of the move to digital health care access and exploring how to further
this work will be critical. Unpaid carers have been struggling with increasing
issues about lack of support and will need further help. A further and recent
report about informal carers will be circulated to Members following the meeting -
92 million hours of unpaid care were provided to people with needs across
England, on top of routine unpaid hours, a truly astounding amount of time and
dedication.

Health care has changed more in the last 6 months than over the last 20 years
and this work has been of much value. Good Wifi connection to access digital
services will be key, ideally fibre optic to the front door especially in rural
Hampshire.

Excess deaths not attributed to Covid in care home settings will be critically
important to understand but will need to be reviewed over time. Work has been
commissioned with partners to better understand the situation and will be shared
with colleagues.

While there were challenges with face to face engagement, the digital revolution
has been inclusive and reached a broader population. There is an increased
awareness for identifying digitally excluded people and particular areas or
pockets where deprivation is a factor, and an onus on organizations to reach out
to these communities to address concerns in a joint up way.

Connecting with groups harder to connect with due to excess Covid risks will be
key to work through any resurgence. Care services are open with a triage
system in place and easier in many ways, but challenges remain with safe in-
person visits. Staff in primary care have also been reassessed and enabled due
to the ability to work remotely with video consultations and access to patient
records. Work is being done to ensure that people are no longer afraid of trying
to come forward and this must continue.

While there have been inequalities in primary care access and challenges
around digital consults, late diagnoses, etc. for some, there have been different
thresholds of accessing services. The next step is to address the concerns of
those exacerbated by lack of access.

Not leaving communities behind, building health resilience, disease prevention,
and preventing ill health are ongoing priorities. The Joint Strategic Needs
Assessment will also be refreshed in light of Covid for awareness of changes in
need and up-to-date, longer term data.

RESOLVED:

That the Health and Wellbeing Board--

e Noted the inequalities and health and wellbeing impact of COVID-19 to
the residents of Hampshire.

Page 5



130.

STARTING WELL: THEME UPDATE

The Director of Children’s Services at Hampshire County Council provided an
update on the priorities and progress of the Starting Well strand of the Health
and Wellbeing Strategy and the impact of the Covid-19 pandemic on progress in
this area. Members heard:

While services are holding up well through the response to Covid, new trauma
and a range of other factors have been leading to family breakdown.

In reviewing the Starting Well priorities with Covid-related challenges, universal
services were not always in place and thus there were fewer collective eyes on
children. Families did not always have the support or help they would have
usually had and rather than receiving early assistance, children are now
becoming visible having suffered serious harm.

With schools and nurseries currently open, the number of referrals will now
continue to rise. The cohort entering the system from April to August was
distressing to witness but social workers worked diligently to help them.
Universal services will now be able to identify families needing help early on.

Emotional wellbeing issues at school did not quite play out as anticipated. Many
children have enjoyed the last 6 months and there was less repair of trauma, but
more anxiety about returning to school full time — a slightly different and new
worry.

An action plan based the impact of Covid will determine priority areas and
picking up on key issues with a joint delivery partnership, including self-harm tool
kits, school surveys, websites with resources and training, etc.

In tackling wider issues, reducing wait times for treatment, acute setting
colleagues for paediatric psychiatric liaison services, prevention and early help
models and mental health support teams in schools have been prioritized in
keeping with the NHS long term plan. Work continues to bring in young people
and family voices to bolster bids for increase in mental health support and
provide link programmes between the voluntary sector, mental health, and
schools. Partnership with young people for digital offers and how to best connect
them to services, digital options, and Child and Adolescent Mental Health
Services (CAMHS) solutions in addition to face to face meetings.

Physical education in schools, maternity smoking cessation, encouraging
breastfeeding, strong referral pathways and tools to support people remain
priorities alongside existing Covid challenges.

In terms of codesign and collaboration, working well together requires doing so
consistently and timely with a focus on the action plan for an effective joint
commissioning board with strategic commissioning priorities, positive feedback,
formalizing work to be completed and refining by partners.

Work in mental health pathways slowed down during lockdown due to Covid
priorities but are now approaching being business as usual and with

Page 6



improvements in those pathways. The Isle of White is represented in these
arrangements as well. The decision-making body and forum around continuing
care is embedded with all partners for effective care commissioning, packages,
and managing care support markets collectively together.

Next steps are now being considered in developing a different approach of how
these packages are funded. The number of children coming into the system are
rising but being tracked and addressed with colleagues. There was more virtual
working over lockdown, but there has been a return to face-to-face working in
meeting the rise in demand. Family recovery workers for substance issues and
domestic abuse have been working through increasing demand and monitoring
continues to provide support, training, and risk assessments for staff.

Priorities have been agreed with Adults’ health and care for enabled care offers
and how children’s services can avail them to provide families with technology
enabled packages and building their confidence in using them, especially for
shielded and vulnerable children, ensuring social care teams really understand
what is on offer and the benefits that can be accessed.

In response to questions, Members heard:

There have been challenges but also positive outcomes and good work at the
district and council level and efforts made to do better with more involvement, a
coherent approach and joint up working.

A district level health and wellbeing co-ordinator has been recruited with part-
funding from Hampshire County Council and will be coordinating at the district
level, which is an opportunity to use resources already available to reflect in a
broader spectrum. There is a Public Health district link also working closely to
consider complexities and ensure that priorities are embedded in the districts.

The bid to secure additional cross county mental health services was not
successful and the Ninja self-help application received mixed reception with
limited advertisement and uptake. It had been targeted for under 18 but was
less appealing to older young adults. It is a piece of work that remains to be
done.

Endorsing the range of work and providing support for CAHMS in light of the
shocking figures for self-harm hospital inpatients, comparing them to national
numbers, and potential interventions. The Children’s Commissioner published
report in February highlighting disparate levels of funding which affected
Hampshire significantly. This report will be circulated to Members following the
meeting. Acute Trusts colleagues confirmed they would support more funds
being allocated to CAMHS, as the best place for treatment is home.

With regards to codesign with service users or other providers, clarity for
improving the baseline and engagement would be helpful. The action plan will
identify the best places to work together and how to bring together shared
priorities. There is a 12-month action plan until next March and going forwards,
more explicit details will be shared.

Page 7



131.

The Fire service offers schemes around self-esteem for children and due to
Covid, had lost many of the referrals from school nurses and other colleagues
with a decline in numbers participating. While there have been fewer eyes on
children, this component is beginning to be built back in.

Involving partners, patients, and districts will be critical and voluntary sector
colleagues requested being included in planning at the earliest possible stages.

Members congratulated the department and partners on their efforts.
RESOLVED:
That the Health and Wellbeing Board--

e Noted the report.

STARTING, LIVING AND AGEING WELL: HAMPSHIRE PHYSICAL
ACTIVITY STRATEGY UPDATE

Members received an update from Energise Me representatives on the impact of
Covid on physical activity, with a focus on inequalities and modifiable actions in
linking the risks to the general population in terms of exercise and obesity.
Members heard:

In terms of the context for existing inequalities, research has focused on local
voices and looking at what was happening at the local level in disadvantaged
communities, with work continuing through and after the Covid period. As an
organization and sector making connections to people, building trust with
targeted groups and providing funding to help them build activity into their own
lives. The social prescribing application was successful in taking part across the
region to match supply and demand, to innovate around people experiencing
disadvantage, and provide benefit from physical activity with further recruitment
underway with support of regional partners.

Covid exposed fault lines in society and research confirms the same - physical
activity levels are lower for disadvantaged people. Getting people moving would
help with some of these challenges. The map shared translates numbers pre-
Covid, but it is unclear if those numbers will increase going forward and a new
data drop is expected in March. Currently mapped are those points where
organizations and partners stepped in to create a message, but case studies
indicate that it is not always easy.

Highlights from cases studies depict various situations. While lack of outdoor
space can be an issue, using free NHS applications was up 92% and
downloaded by 850,000 people nationally. People in the work force can be
encouraged, if they are able, to help others. In some cases, such as online
classes for wheelchair dances, going online made it easier to access due to no
travel and channel efforts into the classes at home. Some have even gone
international, a positive aspect of Covid. Online offers will remain but in person
activities will pick up.

Page 8



Place based work continues in Hampshire and while things can appear one way
on paper, in speaking to the community in some cases it was contradictory —
people loved where they lived and were happy to stay and be part of it, but
perhaps green spaces existing but didn’t allow for playing ball, being active, etc.
Finding ways to work around these challenges would help take the work
forwards.

Local communities are connecting, and the approach is key to helping people
care for themselves and get fitter. Improved mental health is a significant benefit
that goes along with physical fitness.

In response to questions, Members heard:

The question of why some people exercise and some do not, remains at the
heart of the issue.

A recent consultation has taken place regarding transport and cycling benefit for
communities and their health and wellbeing, but concrete results will require a
system approach. ldeally physical activity ought to be built into people’s days so
as not have to make a separate decision.

A focus on active travel, working with partners to bring travel within the scope of
the physical activity strategy, and inviting transport officers to a Board discussion
would be useful. Work with Environment Transport and Environment colleagues
and travel team will continue, and parish councils will be involved to benefit local
communities and help local people access the significant benefits of physical
activity.

Post-Covid anxiety after extended shielding and in the true spirit of co-
production, communication about physical activity without turning people off,
being inclusive, using non-sports terminology, and reaching all parts of the
population has been the priority for an overall improvement to physical and
mental health and wellbeing.

Energize Me cannot be effective on their own. Board members can help with
making change in their communities, alongside traditional consultations. There
needs be more conversations with the people hardest to reach with the help of
external organization to make connections, which includes low socioeconomic
groups, women, people with underlying conditions, among others. Without
supporting the structural changes and transport arrangements, inadvertently
embedding inequitable uptake of exercise can worsen health outcomes.

The recommendations were approved by a majority with four abstentions.
RESOLVED:
That the Health and Wellbeing Board--

e Share relevant insight across partners to inform future actions and

investments
e Use the insight to inform recovery/restoration plans.

Page 9



132.

e Encourage the schools that are selected, to take part in the Children and
Young People Active Lives Survey to gather better data to inform future
actions and investments.

e Use physical activity as a resource to improve people’s physical and
mental wellbeing.

e Embed physical activity in all care pathways

e Support and engage in the development of the next physical activity
strategy

FORWARD PLAN FOR FUTURE MEETINGS

Members considered anticipated future business items and progress on actions
for the Health and Wellbeing Board.

There was a request to include strategic transport colleagues at the next meeting
to discuss arrangements, implications on physical wellbeing and influencing
future plans.

Considering physical activity as a bigger issue and a general discussion was
suggested.

The Health and Wellbeing Strategy ranges across age groups and can span the
strategy. How different organizations take responsibility for delivering on the
strategy, how to share the work being done and at scale from parishes upwards
is critical. Board Members must go back to their organizations, action the work,
and provide updates.

The Board received a request for the Modernizing Our Hospitals Programme on
the next agenda.

The next Health and Wellbeing Board meeting will take place on 10 December
2020.

The meeting ended at 12:36pm.

Chairman,

Page 10



Agenda Iltem 6

HAMPSHIRE COUNTY COUNCIL

Report
Committee: Hampshire Health and Wellbeing Board
Date: 10" December 2020
Title: STARTING, LIVING AND AGEING WELL: MENTAL HEALTH

AND WELLBEING RECOVERY UPDATE

Report From: Simon Bryant, Director of Public Health
Sue Cochrane, Public Health Consultant

Sandra O’Hagan, Public Health Consultant

lleana Cahill, Public Health Principal

Contact name:  Simon Bryant, Director of Public Health

Tel: 07880 384032 Email: simon.bryant@hants.gov.uk

Purpose of this Report

1. The purpose of this report is to provide an update on the work currently taking
place to support the mental health and wellbeing of Hampshire residents,
including work linked to COVID-19 Recovery.

Recommendation(s)

2. To note the ongoing work to improve the mental health and wellbeing of
Hampshire residents alongside partners through the Mental Health and
Wellbeing Plan. This delivers on Hampshire County Council’s pledge of
commitment made through the Mental Health Prevention Concordat.

Executive Summary

3. This report seeks to:
e Provide an overview of the effect of Covid-19 on the mental health and
wellbeing across the life course.

Page 11


mailto:simon.bryant@hants.gov.uk

e Provide details of the work currently being undertaken across Hampshire
County Council and the wider system to improve mental health and
wellbeing through universal and targeted workstreams.

e Update the board on the associated governance arrangements.

Contextual Information

4. The effects of COVID-19 on mental health will be significant and far reaching,
both in terms of time and impact, across all sections of society and all ages.
There is evidence that self-reported mental health and wellbeing has
worsened during the pandemic, with the main psychological impact being
elevated rates of stress, anxiety, depression, loneliness and worsening levels
of common mental disorders. Longer term impacts in terms of trauma, grief
and distress may exacerbate the burden of mental ill-health in the community
long after recovery.

5. Hampshire’s Mental Health and Wellbeing plan recognises the significant
impact COVID-19 has had on our population’s mental health and wellbeing. It
takes an evidence-based approach, developing interventions that target the
whole population, populations at higher risk and people who need additional
support. It follows key principles including a whole system, population wide
and life-course approach; building on existing partnership arrangements and
ensuring good communication both to professionals and to the public. The
plan is aligned to a number of strategies and workstreams, both across the
council and the wider system. Actions are delivered alongside key partners
including health partners, districts, the community and voluntary sector.

6. This integrates and builds upon the existing suicide prevention and mental
health plans and is in line with the Mental Health Prevention Concordat, which
was signed in October 2019 outlining Hampshire County Council’s pledge to
work across the system to deliver a comprehensive and coordinated plan to
improving mental health and wellbeing. This work will be overseen by the
multi-agency Hampshire Mental Health Partnership Board, which aims to
work strategically to develop a holistic, prevention focused approach to
mental health and wellbeing across Hampshire.

7. The Mental Health and Wellbeing plan is supported by a comprehensive
communications plan to support recovery through weekly universal and
targeted messaging, signposting to appropriate guidance and support.
Resources have been developed with partners across the system to support
the general public, workforce and volunteers. A multi-agency mental health

Page 12



and suicide prevention communications group is in place to ensure
consistency in messaging and engagement with a range of partners from
districts, the voluntary and statutory sectors.

8. Children and young people

COVID-19 has disproportionately impacted on vulnerable children, including those
with existing mental health conditions, special educational needs and from
minority ethnic groups. Evidence suggests that many children and young people
have experienced changes within their home environment, with both positive and
negative impacts on their mental health. For some children and young people,
they have enjoyed more time with family or caregivers. However, where
safeguarding concerns exist, professionals have reported increased complexity of
cases. Indications of strains in family relationships has been linked to an increase
in reporting of loneliness and domestic abuse, and evidence has emerged of
increasing presentations to services for young people in crisis, including those
seeking support for suicidal thoughts.

As part of the Mental Health Plan, clear guidance and communications has been
made available for parents and carers around how to look after their mental
health, with signposting to local and online support to enable early intervention
and strengthen family resilience. The 0-19 Public Health Nursing Service provides
a universal offer of professional advice and support through Hampshire Healthy
Families and the ChatHealth messaging service, with additional targeted support
where unmet health need has been identified.

The Mental Health Plan is aligned to the Emotional Health and Wellbeing
Strategy, with multi-agency workstreams delivered across 6 priority areas:

e Children and young people’s emotional wellbeing and mental health is
everybody’s business

e Support for good mental health of parents

¢ Whole school/education settings approach to mental health

e Supporting mental health of vulnerable children and young people

¢ Reducing rates of self-harm

e Improvement of service provision

Work has taken place with a range of partners to develop the Managing Self-
Harm Toolkit, providing professionals with access to evidence-based resources,
advice and support. In addition, the Council’s “Health in Educational Settings”
workstream has included the development of a robust schools’ resource and the
launch of the Hampshire Health in Education website, providing information,

Page 13



advice, teaching resources and training for education partners. Public Health has
also contributed to the Anna Freud Centre School Link Programme, Wellbeing for
Education Return and Rockpool Trauma Informed practice.

9. Adults

Data from the UK Household Longitudinal Study suggests that mental distress in
adults was 8.1% higher in April 2020 than it was between 2017 and 2019. The
proportion of people experiencing sleep problems increased from 16% before the
pandemic to 25% in April. In addition, evidence suggests that the pandemic has
increased inequalities relating to mental health and wellbeing amongst particular
population groups, including young adults (aged between 18 and 34), women,
people from specific ethnic groups, people on a low income or unemployed,
people with existing health conditions, key workers and those living alone. These
groups have been identified as experiencing higher levels of anxiety, depression,
loneliness and self-harm when compared to other age groups.

Work has taken place across HCC to ensure clear communications, signposting
and support for working age adults. This has included delivery of key mental
health messages through the ‘Its Ok to Not be ‘Ok’ campaign and developing a
signposting resource for adults that includes links to existing pathways of support
and online self-help resources.

A comprehensive Mental Health and Wellbeing training offer has been developed
to support the development of skills and competence of the wider workforce. This
brings together available opportunities to support improved skills and confidence
in talking about and supporting each other’'s mental health and wellbeing through
an accessible, tiered approach that includes short online training and face to face
opportunities. It incorporates mental health awareness and suicide prevention
training and aims to improve the knowledge and skills of frontline workers and
volunteers to supporting emotional and mental health wellbeing. This training will
be promoted across organisations, with plans for targeted promotion for frontline
workers across wider housing, health and care sectors.

Partnership work between Public Health and HCC Workforce Development has
also enabled the development of a corporate workforce offer for HCC staff. This
has included the development of specific guidance for HCC staff and managers,
actively promoting key mental health and wellbeing messages, signposting to
available pathways of support and training opportunities. Mental Health and
Wellbeing resources available to staff and managers have been expanded on a
dedicated intranet site which is regularly promoted. Specific pdf guides have also
been developed that provide staff with information of both the internal and
external support available.

Partnership work between Public Health and wider partners such as the LRF
voluntary sector forum and HCC welfare group has also resulted in the production

Page 14



and dissemination of mental health and wellbeing resource guides aimed at
volunteers and their managers and a suicide prevention guide has been circulated
to partners. Work is currently underway to review and refresh these along with a
specific guide to support the mental health and wellbeing of the wider population.

Targeted approaches have been developed for those at most risk of ill health,
including working through existing workstreams to integrate mental health and
wellbeing into response and recovery efforts. This has been supported by
coordinated work at an STP level which includes promoting access to crisis
support pathways, access to age-appropriate, specialist bereavement support and
developing specific support for people experiencing financial anxiety,
unemployment and social isolation. An innovation fund has also been set up to
provide small grants for grassroots, community led initiatives and enabling specific
initiatives for key target groups.

The SBS Men’s Health programme aims to improve the health, wellbeing and
employment prospects of men through community connections, access to training
and resources to support good physical and mental health. Work has taken place
alongside our district and wider system health partners to develop the focus of this
programme to target groups and areas most affected by COVID-19. This includes
the recruitment and training of Community Champions within communities at
increased risk such as BAME groups and is linking to wider efforts across the
Integrated Care System to ensure appropriate services and support.

10. Older adults and clinically extremely vulnerable

COVID-19 has had a disproportionate effect on older adults, with evidence
showing heightened levels of loneliness, depression and physical deconditioning.
Communication campaigns have tailored messages specifically to older people,
including signposting to available services, promoting the importance of staying
active, and encouraging digital inclusion. A dedicated webpage on staying well at
home was published, with messages targeting physical and mental health, as well
as enhancing the home environment.

During the period when the clinically extremely vulnerable were advised to stay at
home, the Public Health England Active at Home booklet and the Connect to
Support care guide was emailed to those on the shielding list. Partner
organisations supported with delivering hard copies to some of those who were
not digitally connected. Targeted communications were also published under the
‘It's OK to’ banner, to build confidence in those who were clinically extremely
vulnerable to come out of official ‘shielding’.

A direct referral route to a mental health support service was set up from the
Hampshire Coronavirus Support and Helpline to ensure those who expressed
mental health concerns on calls were able to access appropriate support. In
addition, mental health guides to equip staff and volunteers with knowledge in

Page 15


https://www.hants.gov.uk/socialcareandhealth/coronavirus/staying-well-at-home

having conversations about mental health have been developed, including the
wide range of signposting options in Hampshire. A further guide to support the
mental health of the wider population is in the final stages of development.

Performance

11. The Mental Health and Wellbeing workstream is aligned to the delivery of a
number of multi-agency strategies including the Public Health Strategy,
Children and Young People’s Emotional Wellbeing Strategy and the Suicide
Prevention Strategy. A Public Health Mental Health Working Group has been
established to progress key areas of work within the plan, with a separate
Mental Health and Suicide Prevention Communications Group set up to
ensure a cohesive approach to communication and engagement across
sectors and organisations.

12. A strategic level, Mental Health Partnership Board has been set up to provide
further oversight and prevention-focused leadership across the wider public
and voluntary sector system. The initial focus of the Partnership will be on
ensuring a system-wide response to prevention of mental health problems
and suicide, early intervention for those most and risk and access to services
for crisis care. The Partnership will report and celebrate on progress via bi-
annual partnership events chaired by the Hampshire County Council Elected
Member for Public Health. It will also report to a number of linked, strategic
LRF and STP level boards and appropriate groups within Hampshire County
Council (including the CYP Starting Well Group, Suicide Prevention Forum
and Public Service Board).

Consultation and Equalities

13. COVID-19 has increased inequalities relating to mental health and wellbeing
amongst particular population groups, including:

e women, young people, people from specific ethnic groups

e people on a low income/low socio-economic position or unemployed
o key workers

e people in urban areas

e people with children, carers, people living alone

e people with mental health conditions and/or long-term physical health
conditions

Page 16



The Mental Health plan includes details of targeted work to support these
population groups, including communications campaigns, targeted training offers
and integration of mental health and wellbeing across existing workstreams. This
bridges to wider work happening across the ICS to understand and tackle social
disparities linked to the recovery agenda, including work with BAME groups.

Co-Production

14.

15.

16.

17.

18.

The Mental Health and Wellbeing plans have been developed and delivered
alongside a range of partners, both within Hampshire County Council and
across the wider health and social care system. It feeds in to work on mental
health, wellbeing and suicide prevention that takes place across the LRF, ICS
and STP footprints, ensuring collaboration, coordination and consistency
across programmes of work

People with Lived Experience (PLE) form a key part of the delivery of Mental
Health and Suicide Prevention workstreams. A separate PLE group exists
which feeds directly into plans and provide advice where appropriate.
Members of this group sit on the panel for the small grant innovation fund and
advise on specific aspects of the communications plan.

Insight into the thoughts and feelings of Hampshire children and young
people have been gained through delivery and analysis of the Hampshire
School Survey which was recently completed. This has been shared
extensively amongst partners to provide the “voice of the child” and inform
current and future service delivery.

A strategic level, Mental Health Partnership Board has been set up to provide
further oversight and provide prevention-focused leadership across the wider
public and voluntary sector system.

A councillor-led conversation on mental health and wellbeing is planned for
the New Year to enable further collaboration and engagement across
partners. This will provide a stocktake of work undertaken so far and
encourage partners to further commit to working in partnership to promote
coordinated action, improving mental health and wellbeing across the county.

Conclusions

19.

The Hampshire Mental Health and Wellbeing Plan outlines the
comprehensive and collaborative approach to improving mental health and

Page 17



20.

wellbeing through universal and targeted action aimed at supporting COVID-
19 recovery efforts. This work builds on existing efforts and delivers on
Hampshire’s pledge of commitment through the Prevention Concordat.

System-wide improvements will be made through bringing together work
across levels, including encouraging grassroots work alongside our
communities; at strategic level through the Mental Health Partnership Board
and alongside our system partners in the LRF and STP. This work will remain
responsive to the changing needs of the population as the pandemic
progresses.

Page 18



REQUIRED CORPORATE AND LEGAL INFORMATION:

Links to the Strategic Plan

Hampshire maintains strong and sustainable economic | yes
growth and prosperity:

People in Hampshire live safe, healthy and independent | yes
lives:

People in Hampshire enjoy a rich and diverse yes
environment:
People in Hampshire enjoy being part of strong, yes

inclusive communities:

OR

This proposal does not link to the Strategic Plan but, nevertheless, requires a
decision because:

NB: Only complete this section if you have not completed any of the Strategic Plan
tick boxes above. Whichever section is not applicable, please delete.

NB: If the ‘Other significant links’ section below is not applicable, please delete it.
Other Significant Links

Links to previous Member decisions:

Title Date

Direct links to specific legislation or Government Directives

Title Date

Section 100 D - Local Government Act 1972 - background documents

The following documents discuss facts or matters on which this report, or an
important part of it, is based and have been relied upon to a material extent in
the preparation of this report. (NB: the list excludes published works and any
documents which disclose exempt or confidential information as defined in
the Act.)

Page 19



Document
None

Location

Page 20




1.

2.

EQUALITIES IMPACT ASSESSMENT:

Equality Duty

The County Council has a duty under Section 149 of the Equality Act 2010
(‘the Act’) to have due regard in the exercise of its functions to the need to:

Eliminate discrimination, harassment and victimisation and any other
conduct prohibited by or under the Act with regard to the protected
characteristics as set out in section 4 of the Act (age, disability, gender
reassignment, marriage and civil partnership, pregnancy and maternity,
race, religion or belief, sex and sexual orientation);

Advance equality of opportunity between persons who share a relevant
protected characteristic within section 149(7) of the Act (age, disability,
gender reassignment, pregnancy and maternity, race, religion or belief, sex
and sexual orientation) and those who do not share it;

Foster good relations between persons who share a relevant protected
characteristic within section 149(7) of the Act (see above) and persons who
do not share it.

Due regard in this context involves having due regard in particular to:

The need to remove or minimise disadvantages suffered by persons
sharing a relevant protected characteristic that are connected to that
characteristic;

- Take steps to meet the needs of persons sharing a relevant protected

characteristic that are different from the needs of persons who do not share
it;

Encourage persons sharing a relevant protected characteristic to
participate in public life or in any other activity in which participation by such
persons is disproportionally low.

Equalities Impact Assessment:

2.1 COVID-19 has increased inequalities relating to mental health and wellbeing

amongst particular population groups, including those with protected
characteristics:

young people
older people
women, including those who are pregnant

people from specific ethnic groups

Page 21



e people with mental health conditions and/or long-term physical health
conditions

and other factors such as:
e people on a low income/low socio-economic position or unemployed
e key workers
e people in urban areas
e people with children, carers, people living alone

2.2 The Mental Health plan includes details of targeted work to support these
population groups, including communications campaigns, targeted training
offers and integration of mental health and wellbeing within existing
workstream. This bridges to wider work happening across the ICS to
understand and tackle social disparities linked to the recovery agenda,
including work with BAME groups.

2.3 A full equalities impact statement was not completed at this stage as the
purpose of this report is to provide details of the work currently being
undertaken across Hampshire County Council and the wider system to
improve mental health and wellbeing.

Page 22



Starting, Living and Ageing Well

Mental Health and Wellbeing
Recovery Update

Update for the Health and Wellbeing Board

Simon Bryant, Director of Public Health
Sue Cochrane, Public Health Consultant



Mental Health and Wellbeing
Impact of Covid-19

Health Footprint
oftZaRBEdic

A 15t Wave & 4™ Wave

* Psychic trauma
 Mental illness

« Economic injury
 Burnout

_ Immediate mortality
~~ and morbidity of
COVID-19

/

2%t Wave
J Impact of resource
. restriction on urgent
! non-COVID conditions 3rd Wave

Impact of
interrupted care on
- \‘ chronic conditions

1% Wave Tail
, Post-ICU recovery

ampsnire
@ County Council www.hants.gov.uk




Psychological Impacts of COVID-19

- mental distress - anxiety, depression - loneliness - common mental disorders

Young adults
Women

Ethnic groups

T

Q
Q

D
Key l&qorkers

People on a low income/low socio-
economic position/unemployed

People in urban areas, people with
children, carers, people living alone

People with existing mental health and
long-term physical health conditions

People who have had COVID-related
symptoms

Anxiety, depression, loneliness and self-harm higher
than other age groups

Worse mental health and wellbeing, increased
loneliness

Asian groups in particular suffered more mental
distress

Worse mental health and wellbeing
Increased stress, anxiety

Increased anxiety and depression
Increased loneliness

Worse mental health and wellbeing and increasing
mental distress linked to loneliness

Increased anxiety, depression and loneliness

Higher levels of mental distress and loneliness



Priorities

Covid Recovery
» Addressing drivers of poor mental health and wellbeing
» Focus on inequalities and key risk factors

» Determinants of poor mental health affected by
COVID-19

» shielding,
« financial difficulties, debt, unemployment,
* bereavement,

« domestic violence and abuse, risky alcohol
consumption, substance misuse, gambling
addiction.

Access to and responsive mental health services

Prevention

Early ; >
intervention _

Access to - _
crisis care W Business as Usual

* Public mental health:
* Preventing mental health problems and suicide
* Promoting mental health and wellbeing

« Improving the lives of people experiencing and
recovering from mental health problems

« Reducing mental health inequalities

 PHE Prevention Concordat for Better Mental Health - a
framework for action




Hampshire’s Mental Health and Wellbeing plan

Key principles Communications Plan

* Whole System Approach Children & Young People

* Population wide & life course

Adults of Working Age
D approach

Q 3 ° . .
«> Building on existing Older People

N
~ partnerships and structures

Bereavement & Trauma

Suicide Prevention

e Joined up communications &
messaging

Social Disparities

¥~ Hampshire
@ County Council www.hants.gov.uk



every mind
matters

SUPPORT FOR YOUNG
CARERS

Communications

SUICIDE AWARENESS

every mind
) matters

°
=
listen

every mind
matters

support

KEEP ACTIVE MH SUPPORT AND HELP

« Universal and weekly targeted messaging

« Signposting to appropriate guidance and
support

» Specific campaigns e.g. ‘Its okay not to be
okay’

* Delivered through multiagency MH
communications group: consistent messaging
across partners




Children and young people

« Disproportionate impact on vulnerable children: existing

m .. . . .
T ipSfOrl0OKING BfEat MH conditions, SENs, minority ethnic groups

» Clear, targeted guidance and communications for parents
and carers

— Specific campaigns e.g. children with autism, CYP
with physical health issues, young carers

your children’s

mentalwellbeing

«  Utilising opportunities through existing workstreams

— Health in Educational Settings: robust school resource
focusing on increasing resilience and wellbeing

— Supporting staff and settings to ensure that emotional
wellbeing is integrated throughout environment and
activities

* Mental health support in schools

* Using technology to support better mental health:
ChatHealth, Think Ninja

+ Targeted support for vulnerable children

* Promoting resources through Hampshire Healthy
Families and Hampshire CAMHS website

T

www.hants.gov.uk



o€ abed

Adults

Key mental health messages through targeted
communications

Workforce:

— MH and wellbeing resource guides aimed at
volunteers and managers

— Comprehensive training offer for frontline staff
— Development of HCC corporate workforce offer

STP wide efforts bringing together MH and Suicide
Prevention:

— Developing pathways for specialist bereavement
support

— Specific support for people experiencing financial
anxiety

Grassroots community initiatives
— Innovation Funding

— SBS Mens Health: recruitment and training of
community champions

Mental Health and Wellbeing

Support Guide for Adults

What’s in this guide and who is it for?

This guide is to support your mental health and wellbeing, Here you willfind helpful tips and links to a range of resources, including information on where to
find specific support and urgent care if needed.

Looking after your mental health and wellbeing

Having
wellbeing

O

Five ways towellbelng
Connecting; with the people around you
Be active; by building activity into your everyday routine
Keep learning; to gain self-confidence and learn new skills
Give: helping others can boost wellbeing
Tokn Nt by kg focie of i thiights nd ekt

hant
uaweHbemg

Every Mind Matters
Every Mind Matters offers expert advice and practical tips
that cover the 5 ways to wellbeing and other topics such
as; what to do if your worried about coronavirus, sleeping
r and managing difficult thoughts and feelings.
nhs.uk/oneyoulevery-mind-matters/

a Hampshire

County Council

Top tips to look after your mental health and wellbeing

g00d mental health helps us relax more, achieve more and enjoy our lives more. Evidence shows there are 5 key elements which contribute to mental

One You
Our physical health impacts how we are feeling. One You
provides easy steps on how to make changes that that can fit
your lifestyle: nhs.uk/oneyou!

National advice from Public Health England on how to look
after your physical health in the home is also available:

at-home

Apps
These mental health and wellbeing NHS approved phone
apps include findings ways to exercise and practical ideas for

‘meals. Your also find free apps and tools that can
help ift your mood: nhs.uk/oneyou/apps/

Visit our Coronavirus Resource Page for a range of useful
information and links to support you throughout the
coronavirus pandemic www.connecttosupporthampshire.
org.ukdcoronavirus

hants.gov.uk

Tars e thrple higs ek s ik a4 of i il it e ol gtk o ey, DOk s A el ek ey
and make sure we can look after ourselves and those we care about. For further Information search Every Mind Ma

¥
@@@@@

Stay connected
Maintaining healthy relationships with people we trust is
Important for our mental wellbeing, If you can't meet up in
person stay in touch by phone, video call or social media.

Talk about your worries
It's OK to share your concerns with others you trust —

and doing o may help the toa.fyou cannct spesk to
someone you know or if doing so has not helped, there are
plenty of helplines you can try instead.

Look after your body
Our physcl hasth h a bl impact on how we fal Try to
‘cat healthy meals, drink enough water and exercise. Going for
2 Ak or Fun can e I your mood s Gkar your g

Feel prepared
As the outbreak continues, it can help to work through what
changes to government guidelines mean for you. It can help

to think through a typical week: how will you continue to be
affected and what wil you need to do to solve any problems,

Support and help others
Helping someone else can benefit you as well as t
Try to think of things you can do to help those pliei you.

Hampshire County Council Mental Health and Wellbeing Guide

from Every Mind Mattors: 10 tips t0 help f you are worried about coranavirus

0o things you enjoy

Focusing on a hobby., relaxing or connecting with others can
help with anxious thoughts and feelings. If you cannot do
the things you normally enjoy, think about how you could
adapt them, or try something new.

Stay on top of diFflcult feellngs

Try to focus on the things you can control, such as your
behaviour and who you speak to. Try some ideas to help
manage such as: listening to an audio guide. Seek further
support if needed by calling NIHS 111 or talking to your GP.

Stick to the facts
Find a credible source you can trust - such as Ke
Hampshire Safe and the NHS ~ and fact-check information
You get from newsfeeds, social media or other people.

Focus on the present
Focusing on the present, rather than worrying about the
future, can help with difficult emotions and improve our
wellbeing, Relaxation techniques such as mindful breathing
can also help some people deal with feelings of anxiety.

Look after your sleep
Good-quality sleep makes a big difference to how we feel
mentally. See these helpful tips on how to make a change.




every mind
matters

Older adults
and clinically
extremely
vulnerable

T¢ abed

every mind
matters

Communication campaigns with tailored messages
— signposting to available services
— promoting the importance of staying active
— encouraging digital inclusion

Dedicated HCC webpage ‘Staying well at home’

Distribution of the Public Health England Active at Home booklet to support
mental and physical health.

Targeted communications under 'It's Ok to' banner to build confidence after
coming out of 'shielding'.

Mental Health guides to support staff, volunteers and the wider population

Direct referral routes to mental health support services from the Hampshire
Coronavirus Support and Helpline



NHS|

Hampshire and Isle of Wight

Sustainability and Transformation Partnership

Hampshire
Wellbeing
Centre

r

i FE—

Englarg

Local suicide
prevention planning

A Practics reso.sce

Voluntary Organisations

CO-QCCURRING MSORDERS ARE THE SIMULTANEQUS EXISTEMNCE
OF WO CONDMTIONS

DUAL DIAGNOSIS:
FACING ADDICTION AND MEMTAL ILLNESS

W Holt of ol cdios also have
mmaarial i, knorwn oo dual
diogross

ENENA,

NERSHIP Five Ways to Wellbelng

Whocrarbges 7 L

I neliness. __Isolation

healt 'E"C‘ﬁamé!lﬂs ¥ 2 faBtUFSﬂ@E | Reducing health

= |onely assaciated inequalities in

HampShlr C ™ - G VIS e
@ County Councll et et =2 |

IR Hamzsire d otbeo.
- SEREs ™




Moving forward

Hampshire Mental Health Partnership Board:

— Providing strategic oversight and prevention -focused
leadership

o
Bi-annual Councillor-led conversation with partners
™

gHE Prevention Concordat for Better Mental Health
— applying this as a framework for Hampshire-wide action

Hampshire MH and SP Comms group

Promoting the universal and targeted workforce offer
— Training
— Launch of support guides

Partnership working across STP

¥ Hampshire

@ County Council




This page is intentionally left blank



Agenda Item 7

HAMPSHIRE COUNTY COUNCIL

Report
Committee: Hampshire Health and Wellbeing Board
Date: 10" December 2020
Title: Living Well Theme Focus
Report From: Dr Barbara Rushton, Board Sponsor for Living Well
Contact name: Morna Corr
Tel: 02392282062 Email: morna.corrl@nhs.net

Purpose of this Report

1. The purpose of this report is to provide an updated to the Hampshire Health
and Wellbeing Board on the priorities and progress of the Living Well strand
of the Health and Wellbeing Strategy. The presentation also makes reference
to some of the schemes that have been implemented rapidly as a result of the
pandemic.

Recommendation(s)
That the Hampshire Health and Wellbeing Board:
Reduce the proportion of women smoking at the time of delivery
The Board are asked to note the progress in this area and highlight the value of
working in partnership on this and other key priorities to reduce health inequalities

in Hampshire.

Reduce the gap in smoking between people in routine and manual
occupations & the general population

The Board is asked to note the work achieved by our acute providers in this area
and support a renewed effort through Public Health, NHS Commissioning, NHS
provision and the voluntary sector to reduce the proportion of women smoking at
the time of delivery.

Implement whole systems approach to childhood obesity in one area
of Hampshire

Page 35


mailto:morna.corr1@nhs.net

The Board is asked to support and promote the Healthy Weight agenda within
their organisations including working collaboratively through a whole system
approach.

Implement the Hampshire Physical Activity Strategy with a specific
focus on enabling the workforce to be competent to promote physical
activity for life

The Board is asked to ensure their organisations are sighted on and contribute to
the Strategy Consultation.

Signpost to and encourage the systematic use of effective
tools/initiatives (including digital) that will enable people to improve
their self-management and provide peer support for long-term
conditions

The Board is asked to note the various tools open to clinician and the public to
support them in their conditions.

Executive Summary

2. Each chapter of the Health and Wellbeing Strategy is underpinned by an
action plans setting out the priorities for action. The presentation to be
delivered to the Health and Wellbeing Board outlines the priorities, progress
and next steps for the Living Well action plan.

Co-Production

3. The report and presentation have been co-produced between Health, Public
Health and Energise Me.

Page 36



REQUIRED CORPORATE AND LEGAL INFORMATION:

Links to the Strategic Plan

Hampshire maintains strong and sustainable economic | No
growth and prosperity:

People in Hampshire live safe, healthy and independent | Yes
lives:

People in Hampshire enjoy a rich and diverse No
environment:
People in Hampshire enjoy being part of strong, No

inclusive communities:

Page 37




EQUALITIES IMPACT ASSESSMENT:

1.

Equality Duty

The County Council has a duty under Section 149 of the Equality Act 2010
(‘the Act’) to have due regard in the exercise of its functions to the need to:

Eliminate discrimination, harassment and victimisation and any other
conduct prohibited by or under the Act with regard to the protected
characteristics as set out in section 4 of the Act (age, disability, gender
reassignment, marriage and civil partnership, pregnancy and maternity,
race, religion or belief, sex and sexual orientation);

Advance equality of opportunity between persons who share a relevant
protected characteristic within section 149(7) of the Act (age, disability,
gender reassignment, pregnancy and maternity, race, religion or belief, sex
and sexual orientation) and those who do not share it;

Foster good relations between persons who share a relevant protected
characteristic within section 149(7) of the Act (see above) and persons who
do not share it.

Due regard in this context involves having due regard in particular to:

The need to remove or minimise disadvantages suffered by persons
sharing a relevant protected characteristic that are connected to that
characteristic;

Take steps to meet the needs of persons sharing a relevant protected
characteristic that are different from the needs of persons who do not share
it;

Encourage persons sharing a relevant protected characteristic to
participate in public life or in any other activity in which participation by such
persons is disproportionally low.

Equalities Impact Assessment:

An equalities impact assessment has not been completed for this item which
is an update during Covid.

Page 38



' »¥ Hampshire
m "MEenerglse e Countprounc[I

Hampshire Wellbeing Board
Living Well Update

6¢ abed

December
2020



Living Well Priorities

1. Reduce the proportion of women smoking at the time of delivery

2. Reduce the gap in smoking between people in routine and
manual occupations & the general population

3. Implement whole systems approach to childhood obesity in one area
of Hampshire

>
A%Implement the Hampshire Physical Activity Strategy with a specific
f&us on enabling the workforce to be competent to promote physical
activity for life

5. Take a community approach to resilience, supporting the 5 ways to
wellbeing initiative

6. Work in partnership with local stakeholders to understand and take action
on the wider determinants of health as a major influence on mental wellbeing

7. Signpost to and encourage the systematic use of effective tools/initiatives
(including digital) that will enable people to improve their self-management and
provide peer support for long-term conditions



Reduce the proportion of women smoking at the time @:1sks5:
delivery

* Increased from 8.7% in 18/19 to 9.3% in 19/20. (England: 10.8% in 18/19 and 10.4% in 19/20). Improved
identification of smokers in early pregnancy may have contributed to this rise.

e HCC Public health have worked with all trusts to undertake Public Health England’s Deep Dive

-#Assessment of Pathways and audit levels of CO Screening at booking. All four hospital trusts are actively
g/vorking to increase the number of women who stop smoking during pregnancy

o
D
« "Smokefree Hampshire have reviewed their smoking in pregnancy service and implemented a
number of improvements for maintaining the engagement of women and improving their chance
of quitting; 52% of pregnant women quit at 4 weeks. A digital marketing campaign aimed at pregnant women and their
partners is planned for launch in December.

* Itis anticipated that Covid-19 will have a direct and negative impact on rates for the remainder of

19/20 and into 20/21 as CO monitoring at booking is temporarily on hold. This has seen an reduced level
of women coming forward as smokers (i.e. reduced smoking at time of booking rates) and therefore a reduction in the number
of women referred for support.



Reduce the gap in smoking between people in routine and manual ( I-SITMO#SeHIRE

occupations & the general population

* In Hampshire, the proportion of people who smoke in routine and manual occupations was 19.3%
in 2019, compared to 10% of adults overall (England: 23.2% in R&M compared to 13.9% in adults overall)

. ;Smokefree Hampshire are actively engaging with key groups such as people living in the most deprived areas
f Hampshire and certain ethnic communities including targeted marketing, mobile outreach clinics, telephone support, the
hprovision of ‘Quit with Bella’ app support and home visiting for the most vulnerable members in our community (pre Covid-19)

N

* 45% of people who used Smokefree Hampshire and quit successfully at 4 weeks are from routine

and manual occupations (2019/20). Of those people in routine and manual occupations that set a quit date, 65%
have successfully quit at 4 weeks

 Initial results from the Quit for Covid campaign have demonstrated the value of working in

partnership with 1,084 self referrals in October and November compared to 251 in September. we
are working with Smokefree Hampshire to determine the proportion of those quitting that are from our priority groups



Example of targeted campaign during the Pandemic
- Quit for Covid

)

QUIT FOR COVID 4

Smoking damages your lungs and weakens your immune system, increasing your
risk of developing life-threatening complications from COVID-19.

The Public Health team in Hampshire and loW, working with the CCGs and
supported by the LMC developed a programme, with the aim of reducing the
number of smokers locally.

Practices were asked to send a predefined text message to all their smokers with
some simple advice which also directed them to the local smoke stop service
who were primed to receive an increase in people seeking help.

This messaging was linked with two features on BBC South.



Healthy Hearts - Programme vision and Principles

To develop an operating model for cardiovascular disease prevention and to support the practical implementation of
opportunities identified by CVD Prevent programme in an equitable way that addresses unwarranted variation across

our geography
Principles:
¢ Take a holistic approach to CVD prevention
;uU + Maximise encounters
‘% ** Promote remote technology for diagnosis and monitoring
N *» Use extended primary care teams
B % Optimise NHS health checks

Programme Outcomes:

>
>
>

YV V

Support behaviour change and promote cardiovascular health by making every contact count

Optimise medication;

Extend the work on cholesterol across HIOW and adapt the model to review all CVD risk factors at the Identify stage
for this cohort;

Initiate the work on blood pressure initially based on a similar model;

Increase the use of technology to support diagnosis and monitoring;

Adapt the programme when PCN CVD DES is published, emphasising a need to assist ‘struggling’ practices.



Implement whole systems approach to childhood obesity in one area of Hampshire

» Pilot started in Rushmoor: A whole Eystems working group has been established in Rushmoor with Hampshire Public Health,
Rushmoor Borough Council, North East Hampshire and Farnham CCG and Energise Me. This group connects to wider stakeholders
and local partners via the Local Obesity Action Group

. f{,he. tearpt hatve engaged with key partners, such as MIND, food retailers and housing associations to explain the approach and why
it's importan

» Five Rushmoor early years settings have piloted the healthh/_early years award, including the ‘Healthy Weight, Healthy Eating’ topic.
_JhIS has now gone live to all early years settings in Hampshire

jab)
Q

. ﬁeNotrk a(ljused in March 2020 due to the Covid-19 pandemic. We envisage the following will be priority actions when the work is
started:
ol

*  Marketing of opportunities: Digital marketing and promotion of the key healthy weight offers, including WW and Better Health and free
physical activity opportunities and working with primary care to increase signposting to their patients

* Influencing the food environment through targeted actions to improve access to and promotion of healthier eating

*  Promoting Health in Educational Settings resources (including healthy weight resources) to schools and early years settings
* Increasing access to play/physical activity opportunities through funding opportunities

* Increasing local stakeholder participation in the Whole System Approach

*  Promoting Innovation Fund to grassroots/community organisations

. OurPIan is to roll-out the approach to another District/Borough in late 2021 focussing on an area with the highest rates of child and
adult excess weight



Hampshire Physical Activity Strategy —developing
the workforce to promote physical activity for life

‘Energise
Me

Ja a“? SR e« Workforce training for
YQ Cx e g -

5 P s R the health sector, social
LY Y B s prescribing and volunteer
; : PRR B o " bR WOrkarces
* National Academy for
Social Prescribing

Thriving Communities
Programme

* We Can Be Active Big
Online Conversation




Signpost to and encourage the systematic use of effective tools/initiatives (including digital) that will enable
people to improve their self-management and provide peer support for long-term conditions

* Alibrary of free, accredited, readily available digital resources that HHOW
Primary Care Clinicians can access at ay time. A Service Finder is also

available on the HIOW

Personalised Care

* Includes a range of diagnosed long term conditions, as well as self-help Website. This features
resources such as lifestyle, weight and mood management tools. educational materials as

T well as details regarding
Kgbrary haS had 546 Down|OadS / local peer support groups
(9]

s _ _

Hampshire and Isle of Wight

Sustainability and Transformation Partnership

e Ranges from educational websites, video libraries and apps.

# Home Hello my name is... Our work v Events & training Your stories v Resources ~ Contact us

Resources

What Matters to You Resources Patient Activation Measure (PAM) One page profile template & how to

guide
Guides Self Care and Self Management

YouTube clips




Example of initiative during the Pandemic
COVID Oximetry@home .u ]

The COVID Oximetry at Home pathway should be available to people who have
suspected or diagnosed COVID 19 AND are symptomatic AND are aged 65 years or older
R are under 65 years where there is clinical concern.

«Q

9]

atients provided with a pulse oximeter and supporting information or suitable app /
regular recall mechanism), contact details to report oximetry reading / symptomes.

Patients will be encouraged to record oximetry readings daily, usually three times a day.

Patients whose data indicating deterioration will have a clear instruction on the course of
action



Social Prescribing

This video outlines the value and role of social prescribers as members of the multidisciplinary team at
the Sovereign Network of GP practices in South East Hampshire.

Jane Majidzadeh and Andrew Partridge - Social prescribers, Ria Shingdia - Clinical Practice Pharmacist
and Dr Jennifer Rattray - GP

61 abed

https://www.youtube.com/watch?v=ESRgDVeMoXw&feature=youtu.be



https://www.youtube.com/watch?v=ESRgDVeMoXw&feature=youtu.be

Recommendations to the Board ‘ﬂ

Reduce the proportion of women smoking at the time of delivery
The Board are asked to note the progress in this area and highlight the value of working in partnership on this and other
key priorities to reduce health inequalities in Hampshire.

Reduce the gap in smoking between people in routine and manual occupations & the general population
The Board is asked to note the work achieved by our acute providers in this area and support a renewed effort through
(nglic Health, NHS Commissioning, NHS provision and the voluntary sector to reduce the proportion of women smoking

& the time of delivery.

o)
o

Implement whole systems approach to childhood obesity in one area of Hampshire
The Board is asked to support and promote the Healthy Weight agenda within their organisations including working
collaboratively through a whole system approach

Implement the Hampshire Physical Activity Strategy with a specific focus on enabling the workforce to be competent
to promote physical activity for life
The Board is asked to ensure their organisations are sighted on and contribute to the Strategy Consultation

. Signpost to and encourage the systematic use of effective tools/initiatives (including digital) that will enable people to
improve their self-management and provide peer support for long-term conditions
The Board is asked to note the various tools open to clinician and the public to support them in their conditions



TG obed

Discussion




This page is intentionally left blank



Agenda Iltem 8

HAMPSHIRE COUNTY COUNCIL

Report
Committee: Hampshire Health and Wellbeing Board
Date: 10 December 2020
. Hampshire Together: Modernising our Hospitals and Health
Title: . .
Services — Impact on Population Health
Report From: James Lawrence-Parr, Population Health Lead — north and

mid Hampshire, Hampshire and Isle of Wight Partnership of
Clinical Commissioning Groups

Contact name: John Boyman

Tel: 01256 852615 Email:  john.boyman@hhft.nhs.uk

Purpose of this Report

1. The purpose of this report is to provide a summary of the impact on
population health in relation to the Hampshire Together: Modernising our
Hospitals and Health Services programme.

Recommendation(s)

That the Hampshire Health and Wellbeing Board:

2. Confirms how they would like to be kept involved in the consultation process

2.1. Suggests any areas they feel require additional focus or input relating to
population health impacts

Executive Summary

3. This report seeks to set out the background to the Hampshire Together:
Modernising our Hospitals and Health Service programme and consider the
potential benefits and impacts for the population of Hampshire.

Contextual Information

4. The programme is looking at the best way to organise services to meet the
population’s changing health needs and to adapt the way some services are
delivered so they can continue to meet best practice and clinical quality

Page 53




guidelines, and are sustainable for the long-term. To meet these challenges
the local NHS has been exploring the possibility of centralising some of the
most specialist hospital services for the sickest people on one site, rather
than spread across two main sites (Basingstoke and Winchester) as they
currently are.

5. Consolidating the most specialist services in one place would mean a better
use of senior clinicians, who are currently spread too thinly across hospital
sites. It would also mean clinical teams treat more patients with particular
conditions and illnesses, helping to better maintain their specialist expertise.

6. The programme also includes the potential for the construction of a brand
new hospital as part of the Government’s Health Infrastructure Plan.
Hampshire Hospitals was last year named as one of the trusts chosen to
receive capital funding as part of this Department of Health and Social Care’s
plan, which is designed to support 40 hospital building projects across the
country between 2025 and 2030.

7. A process of options development began in August 2020. Doctors, nurses
and other clinicians from north and mid Hampshire held a series of
conversations and virtual workshops to look at how health and care services
could be designed for the future. More than 100 people, including current
patients with experience of using hospital services, clinicians from across the
health and care system, and representatives of various groups from the
community took part in a variety of sessions throughout the autumn.

8. After a comprehensive search for sites across Alton, Andover, Basingstoke,
Eastleigh, Winchester and the surrounding areas was carried out, two
locations have been identified as potential sites for a proposed new acute
centralised hospital. The first is located between Basingstoke and
Winchester, near to junction seven of the M3, with the other being based on
the current site of Basingstoke and North Hampshire Hospital. If an acute
centralised hospital was to be built at either of these locations, significant
investment would also be made at Royal Hampshire County Hospital with a
view to it becoming a main local hospital.

Integrated Impact Assessment

9. Mott MacDonald has been commissioned by Hampshire Hospitals NHS
Foundation Trust to undertake an Integrated Impact Assessment (ll1A) to
support the Modernising our Hospitals and Health Services programme. The
[IA aims to analyse the consequences of clinical service change and/or
reconfiguration option (s); and produce evidence-based recommendations to
maximise positive impacts, and minimise the negative impacts of an option(s).
The IlA is an iterative process with the most recent interim [IA report receipted
on 20" November 2020.

Page 54



10. The geographical study area for the IIA covers a population of 924,000
people and is based on historical activity to Hampshire Hospitals NHS
Foundation Trust

11. A summary of the key impacts are detailed below. It is important to note that
the impact analysis recommends mitigating actions where needed, but does
not factor the impact of mitigations into the analysis at this stage:

11.1. Patient outcomes - significant beneficial impact

Improved evidence based clinical model with increased consultant staff
cover to improve patient outcomes

The achievement of workforce standards that promote consultant-
delivered care and remove variation.

A model that allows for a critical mass of cases to be undertaken and
provides opportunities for sub-specialisation

Separation of low complexity planned surgery into a planned surgery
centre

11.2. Journey time impacts for patients, visitors and staff - marginal adverse

11.3.

11.4.

11.5.

11.6.

Centralising acute hospital services into a single hub will create
additional journey time impacts for some patients and visitors -
services provided locally at Royal Hampshire County Hospital will help
to minimise impact

Transportation cost and accessibility - Marginal adverse

Increases for a proportion of the population travelling to access the
centralised hub.

Health inequalities - Minor beneficial

Potential for positive impacts experienced through local care model
and local developments

Impact on service delivery - Significant beneficial

Potential to improve patient pathways through revised clinical models
The impact of consultant delivered care which has been demonstrated
to facilitate the efficient and effective use of resources.

The separation of low complexity planned surgery and emergency
surgery has been evidenced to reduce length of stay. This ensures that
hospital resources are utilised in the most effective way as well as
avoiding the complications for patients which are associated with long
lengths of stay in hospital.

If more services are delivered across two sites, this will lead to less
opportunity for development of new models of care.

Service delivery across main acute hospital and local hospital sites will
provide a model of care which allows patients to receive a level of care
which is proportionate to their need.

Impact on workforce - Marginal beneficial

Page 55



Workforce benefits from improvements in the clinical model
Workforce challenges from adjusting to working at alternative site
The Programme’s proposals have the potential to positively impact the
workforce through:
o The creation of sustainable rotas and working patterns
o Increased or different training opportunities will also be
beneficial for some staff
o Staff may also feel increased motivation through working in
hospital facilities

11.7. Deliverability — Neutral

Assumes that implementation is well planned

The potential location of the centralised hub will bring different risks to
deliverability.

Should the centralised hub be located at BNHH existing facilities at
BNHH will require some refurbishment. The arrangements for
temporarily moving (or “decanting”) services to allow for refurbishment,
whilst maintaining safe services and the required co-dependencies
between services, are likely to be complex. If this is not appropriately
planned and undertaken, there is a risk that the sustainability of
existing patient services could be negatively impacted during this
transitional period.

A new build facility where clinicians will be able to influence the
specification of the hospital, including its’ clinical adjacencies, has the
potential to deliver benefits in terms of improved patient flow and
efficiencies in the delivery of care, improved accessibility of facilities for
patients, improved patient experience, as well as a reduction in the risk
of hospital-acquired infections as a result of improved healthcare
facilities which are practically easier to maintain and clean.

11.8. Impact on other providers

The impact of change on neighbouring providers is in the process of
being determined.

11.9. Wider sustainability (air quality) - Minor beneficial

Reduction in traffic around Winchester. Relevant if Basingstoke
Hospital is selected as the site of the acute centralised hospital.
Reduction in traffic around Winchester and Basingstoke. Relevant if J7
M3 selected as the site of the acute centralised hospital.

Minor adverse impact on increased reduction in air quality at
neighbouring providers, particularly Southampton

Green House Gases (GHG): Marginal adverse — increase in GHGs
because of longer travel to central site

The entrance to the Royal Hampshire County Hospital is located on
Romsey Road in Winchester, within the Winchester Town Centre Air
Quality Management Area (AQMA). The nitrogen dioxide (NO2) annual
mean objective has been exceeded on Romsey Road for several
years, and there are several residential properties on this road.

Page 56



e Basingstoke and North Hampshire Hospital is not located near an
AQMA. The main route to access the hospital by car and ambulance is
from the A339, where national modelling (Pollution Climate Mapping)
predicts average NO2 roadside concentrations for the year 2020 near
the annual mean objective.

e The Junction 7 South site is located in a rural area to the south west of
Basingstoke, where existing air quality is good and there are few
sensitive receptors (residential properties) nearby. The net effect of the
transfer of services from the Basingstoke and North Hampshire
Hospital to the new Junction 7 South site is likely to be beneficial
because the hospital traffic would be moved to an area with lower
sensitivity to air quality impacts.

Consultation and Equalities

12.

Initial public engagement activity was held between 1 June and 7 August
2020, based on a listening document that set out the challenges facing our
health and care system, the opportunities provided by the Hampshire
Together programme and the decisions that will need to be taken in order to
maintain safe, high quality, sustainable services for the long-term. Feedback
received during engagement was independently analysed and a summary,
including a breakdown of the key themes identified, can be found here.

Co-Production

13.

Hampshire Together is the name associated with a number of projects that
involve NHS and social care organisations working in partnership. The key
partners are:

- Hampshire Hospitals NHS Foundation Trust, which provides acute
hospital services at Andover War Memorial Hospital, Basingstoke and
North Hampshire Hospital and Royal Hampshire County Hospital, as well
as some services either at or close to patients’ homes.

- The Hampshire and Isle of Wight Partnership of Clinical Commissioning
Groups and West Hampshire Clinical Commissioning Group, who are
responsible for planning and commissioning NHS services across north
and mid Hampshire. This involves assessing local needs, deciding
priorities and strategies, and then buying services on behalf of the
population from providers.

- Southern Health NHS Foundation Trust and Solent NHS Trust, who
provide community and mental health services for the population of north
and mid Hampshire.

- South Central Ambulance Service, who not only provide ambulance
services, but run the 111 provision and co-ordinate urgent care for the
county.

Page 57


https://www.hampshiretogether.nhs.uk/application/files/7415/9075/0250/FINAL_-_MOH_listening_document_v3_-_online.pdf
https://www.hampshiretogether.nhs.uk/application/files/8316/0491/9890/Hampshire_Together_-_Listening_Exercise_Independent_Analysis_Report_Executive_Summary.pdf

14.

- The 10 Primary Care Networks and GP practices who provide primary
care services to our population.

- Hampshire County Council, the borough and district councils as well as
Parish and Town councils across the county

- Voluntary and community sector organisations

- The University of Winchester and other educational providers in the area.

- The Local Enterprise Partnership.

The programme governance structure can be found here

Page 58


https://www.hampshiretogether.nhs.uk/application/files/5215/9042/2147/Programme_Governance_Structure.pdf

REQUIRED CORPORATE AND LEGAL INFORMATION:

Links to the Strategic Plan

Hampshire maintains strong and sustainable economic | Yes
growth and prosperity:

People in Hampshire live safe, healthy and independent | Yes
lives:

People in Hampshire enjoy a rich and diverse No
environment:
People in Hampshire enjoy being part of strong, No

inclusive communities:

Section 100 D - Local Government Act 1972 - background documents

The following documents discuss facts or matters on which this report, or an
important part of it, is based and have been relied upon to a material extent in
the preparation of this report. (NB: the list excludes published works and any
documents which disclose exempt or confidential information as defined in
the Act.)

Document Location
None

Page 59




1.

2.

EQUALITIES IMPACT ASSESSMENT:

Equality Duty

The County Council has a duty under Section 149 of the Equality Act 2010
(‘the Act’) to have due regard in the exercise of its functions to the need to:

Eliminate discrimination, harassment and victimisation and any other
conduct prohibited by or under the Act with regard to the protected
characteristics as set out in section 4 of the Act (age, disability, gender
reassignment, marriage and civil partnership, pregnancy and maternity,
race, religion or belief, sex and sexual orientation);

Advance equality of opportunity between persons who share a relevant
protected characteristic within section 149(7) of the Act (age, disability,
gender reassignment, pregnancy and maternity, race, religion or belief, sex
and sexual orientation) and those who do not share it;

Foster good relations between persons who share a relevant protected
characteristic within section 149(7) of the Act (see above) and persons who
do not share it.

Due regard in this context involves having due regard in particular to:

The need to remove or minimise disadvantages suffered by persons
sharing a relevant protected characteristic that are connected to that
characteristic;

Take steps to meet the needs of persons sharing a relevant protected
characteristic that are different from the needs of persons who do not share
it;

Encourage persons sharing a relevant protected characteristic to
participate in public life or in any other activity in which participation by such
persons is disproportionally low.

Equalities Impact Assessment:

A full equalities impact statement was not completed at this stage as the purpose
of this report is to provide details of the work currently being undertaken.

Page 60



Hampshire ‘
Together m=»

and Health Services

Hampshire Together

Modernising our Hospitals and Health
Services

T9 abed




le}mmpsh,éw->
Together m=: Background

Modernising our Hospitals and Health Services

* Opportunity arises out of the government’s programme for new hospitals — The Health
Infrastructure Programme 2 (HIP2)

Hampshire is part of the second round - with construction aimed for 2025 to 2030

*29 affed

The money is for a new hospital. But a new building can be a catalyst for so much more

* We've received £5 million to start developing the plan that will deliver for all the people
of Mid & North Hampshire

Hampshire and Isle of Wight Hampshire Hospitals West Hampshire
Par ip of Clinical C issioning Groups NHS Foundation Trust Clinical Commissioning Group




Our changing

population
Increasing population
Age range
Accessibiliy

The challenges

Clinical
sustainability

Clinical standards
Patient needs

New technology
Recruitment

Financial
resilience
Staying within budget
Lifestyle changes Condition of
e i=E s buildings

Maintenance issues
0id buildings
Carbon footprint

INHS INHS INHS |

Hampshire and Isle of Wight Hampshire Hospitals West Hampshire

Par ip of Clinical C i ing Groups NHS Foundation Trust Clinical Commissioning Group




er m= Our vision

Modernising our Hospitals and Health Services

Hampshice I,
Togeth
——

A health, well-being and care service which will support people to
access the right care, in the right place at the right time.

INHS INHS INHS |

Hampshire and Isle of Wight Hampshire Hospitals West Hampshire
Par ip of Clinical C issioning Groups i issioni:

ion Trust Clinical Commissioning Group




Togg’fh =,
—_’

Modernising our Hospitals and Health Services

Hampshlre and Isle of Wight Hampshire Hospitals West Hampshire

p of Clinical C i ing Groups NHS Foundation Trust Clinical Commissioning Group




erm=- Timeline

Modernising our Hospitals and Health Services

U NOVEMBER 2020 JANUARY - MARCH 2021 2022 - 2023
0 - - -
JANUW 2020 AUGUST - SEPTEMBER 2020 OCTOBER 2020 NHSE!/I Stage 2 assurance Public consultation FBC approval 2026 _2030
Public SL‘Q launched Options Generation Workshop and CCG and HHFT confidential boards ICS board review New hospital opens
Options Appraisals Workshop HASC

JUNE - AUGUST 2020 SEPTEMBER 2020 TBC DECEMBER 2020 2021 - 2022 2024 - 2025
Public, staff and i OBC ti Work begins on
stakeholder engagement Long list of options published Hosc cee i;l:nl—:;ﬁ:::;l;oards preperation new hospital
Pre C Case/ gi

Outline Case Addendum drafts

INHS INHS INHS |

Hampshire and IsIe_of Wight Hampshire Hospitals West Hampshire

Par ip of Clinical C i ing Groups NHS Foundation Trust Clinical Commissioning Group




Hampshire __’
Together Formal engagement

Modernising our Hospitals and Health Services

v Informal Survey carried out Jan/ Feb 2020
v" 1,500 responses from public, patients and staff

v" Formal engagement launched 1 June 2020

/ N . o . N o o o T"'Wthe/r_.-_'.
Web.slte, Iletenlng document, introductory animation, social media, L"H - P——
g'? media & digital collateral produced wtho"?:..t‘"c;‘.'iu -
L% v Extensive weekly media coverage across all channels (broadcast, digital and print) v “'"";{n‘é°é"-‘-§rf?'.§f"'u’i:ﬁ" NG’
C\Dl\/ 54 engagement events undertaken throughout June / July/ August 2020
v’ Extra 16 added in response to requests/ feedback from local stakeholders
PEOPLE
v Events covered the whole of Mid & North Hampshire and multiple services (IRAC0E [
v Engagement extended by a week to ensure maximum participation BERKVSVIEI??E AND
v ; s iy NORTH
Over 1,500 items of individual feedback T
v 323 stakeholder, interest, community and patient groups contacted o

v Result was a very strong demographic spread

INHS INHS INHS |

Hampshire and Isle of Wight Hampshire Hospitals West Hampshire

Par p of Clinical C issi g Groups NHS Foundation Trust Clinical Commissioning Group




Hampshice I

Together m=» Emerging themes

Modernising our Hospitals and Health Services

GET IT RIGHT: INTEGRATE SERVICES: INCLUSION & ACCESSIBILITY
Keen to ensure the Support for more integrated HOLISTIC CARE: MATTERS
opportunity is maximised ways of working Importance of making sure Improvements to parking
e.g: e.g: everyone has equal access and (green) public
g-? e.g. transport, e.g:
‘% . “ I wish there “
This could be a Joining up heaith Was more care You need to
significant moment and 50‘-"_‘7’ careis for people with consider the actual
in the history of the biggest autism who needs of patients ...
healthcare delivery. advantage | see. also have and increase their
specific mental access to local care.
’, ’, health issues. ” ’,

Hampshire and Isle of Wight Hampshire Hospitals West Hampshire
Par ip of Clinical C issioning Groups NHS Foundation Trust Clinical Commissioning Group




Hampshire
Together m=-
e

Modernising our Hospitals and Health Services

Population &
Geography

» Coverage of the
&population currently
%accessing services

provided by Hampshire
Hospitals.

=

-
\.' LS
-
-

5 ERCRR 0N
FEERCS
R -

NS - -

X |
v Ay

=
oA

8. -
‘ \




Hampshire I
Togetherm=- |ntegrated impact assessment

Modernising our Hospitals and Health Services

Balanced, multifactorial

_ decision making
Patient

provision

_ HeaIt.h. Journey times Othe.r
inequalities providers

0/ abed

Wider

Deliverability sustainability

e Study area Service
* Populations delivery
* Protected characteristics

INHS

Hampshire and Isle of Wight Hampshire Hospitals West Hampshire
Par ip of Clinical C issioning Groups NHS Foundation Trust Clinical Commissioning Group




Hampshice
Toggther m=
e

Modernising our Hospitals and Health Services

Our System
Inpatient Activity — Selected

Providers
(2019)

=§fudy area of 509 LSOAs

Q
A%ﬂpatient activity in 2019 is
shown for each of the six named

d providers

HHFT is the dominant provider in

the centre of the study area, with
each of the five other providers

accounting for the majority of the
activity in some of the LSOAs.

Inpatient Activity in 2019

W sus -
W sus -
B sus -
W sus -
0 sus -
T sus-

2019 -
2019 -
2019 -
2019 -
2019 -
2019 -

All Admissions -
All Admissions -
All Admissions -
All Admissions -
All Admissions -

All Admissions -

B AN TAITIAAT Y T g AT —
~——

S

i S —

-

HHFT (Sum) X Mmptm
Frimley (Sum) Y
wssm MR

Partsmouth (Sum)
Salisbury (Sum) Hythe
Royal Berks (Sum) Fareham

Locks Heath

i
et
P o=




Site selection

Two potential site options for a possible new centralised acute hospital:

* The current site of Basingstoke and North Hampshire Hospital

e Land near to Junction 7 of the M3

O Basingstoke North

Q) Campus site: 15.8ha
(®) Expansion zone: 2.4ha

¢L?®

ﬁ,

MEDICAL

CAMPUS SITE

m
15—

Basingstoke J7 South

Campus site: 41.5ha
Expansion zone: -

N WY
MEDICAL CAMPUS
; SITE

4
/
r



Options development

* Series of meetings and workshops held with clinicians and patients to help us
draw up and narrow down list of options

. S:?Work ongoing but will result in a shortlist of options for public consultation

«Q
®

* 3December — planned meeting with clinical senate to present the work
undertaken since receiving formal feedback in October



Togg{&h =,
—_’

Modernising our Hospitals and Health Services

Next steps

December — Pre-Consultation Business Case and Consultation Document
published

i) obed"”

= December- meet with clinical senate

= January 2021 — Public Consultation

Hampshire and Isle of Wight Hampshire Hospitals West Hampshire
Par ip of Clinical C issioning Groups NHS Foundation Trust Clinical Commissioning Group




er m=—

Modernising our Hospitals and Health Services

Any guestions?

G, abed

INHS INHS INHS |

Hampshire and IsIe_of Wight Hampshire Hospitals West Hampshire

Par ip of Clinical C i ing Groups NHS Foundation Trust Clinical Commissioning Group




This page is intentionally left blank



Agenda Item 9

HAMPSHIRE COUNTY COUNCIL

Report
Committee: Hampshire Health and Wellbeing Board
Date: 10" December 2020
Title: Hampshire Safeguarding Children Partnership (HSCP) Annual
Report 2019/20
Report From: Derek Benson, Independent Chair, HSCB

Contact name: Tim Sandle, Strategic Partnerships Manager

Tel: 01962 876231 Email: Tim.Sandle@hants.gov.uk

Purpose of this Report

1.1 This attached Annual Report from the Hampshire Safeguarding Children
Partnership (HSCP) provides an independent analysis of the safeguarding
services provided to children and young people in Hampshire over 2019/20. It
contains a summary of the work undertaken to deliver the HSCP’s Business Plan
and outlines the priorities over the next year.

Recommendation(s)
2.1 The Health and Wellbeing Board to note that--

e the Annual Report of the Hampshire Safeguarding Children Partnership
and in particular the assessment that arrangements remain effective.

e the transition to the new arrangements under Working Together 2018 was
successfully implemented in September 2019, and within these
arrangements the statutory status of the three Safeguarding Partners;
Hampshire County Council, Hampshire Constabulary and the Clinical
Commissioning Group. The HSCP will continue to ensure the effective
implementation of the arrangements for Safeguarding Partners laid out in
Working Together 2018.

¢ that whilst the report covers the year 2019/20, the ongoing COVID-19
pandemic has impacted on requirements for service and has seen a
renewed commitment to partnership working.

Page 77


https://www.hampshirescp.org.uk/wp-content/uploads/2020/10/Final-HSCP-Annual-Report-2019-20.pdf

Executive Summary

3.1 The statutory responsibility for the effectiveness of the HSCP is held jointly
between Hampshire County Council Children’s Services, Hampshire
Constabulary, and West Hampshire Clinical Commissioning Group (on behalf of
the Hampshire Partnership of Clinical Commissioning Group). The Hampshire
Safeguarding Children Partnership (HSCP) reviewed its Local Safeguarding
Arrangements document in October 2020, and this is attached to this paper for
information.

3.2 Safeguarding remains a firm priority for all partner agencies, demonstrated by
consistently good levels of attendance, effective engagement in subgroups, and a
strong culture of constructive challenge and debate.

3.3 Key to the success of the HSCP is the focus on the different safeguarding
contexts that exist across Hampshire, with the emphasis being placed on children
and young people being safeguarded in their lives at home, in their friendship
circles, in health, in education and in the public spaces that they occupy both
offline and online.

3.4 Multi-agency work within the HSCP’s groups and subgroups continue to
promote work to drive a range of improvements to both the safety and welfare of
children and young people. Partnership membership extends across several
working groups to provide continuity.

3.5 The Hampshire statutory safeguarding partners for the Isle of Wight,
Portsmouth, and Southampton known locally as ‘HIPS’ continue to collaborate
over the wider geographical area. This benefits professionals working across
more than one of the local authority areas, ensuring greater joined-up working on
strategic issues and common themes.

3.6 The annual business plan and work programme is developed in partnership
with all agencies. The HSCB had four Business Plan priorities during 2019/20.
Information on key highlights delivered under each priority is contained in the
Annual Report and a summary is detailed below.

Priority 1. Further embed and evaluate HSCP initiatives.

a) Formally launching the Family Approach Protocol and Toolkit with the other
LSCBs and Local Safeguarding Adults Boards (LSABS) in the Pan-Hampshire

Page 78



area. Running a programme of multi-agency briefings and agree evaluation
criteria for an end of year evaluation.

b) Developing and embedding the ICON programme, completing the public launch
of the programme. Including undertaking first stage professional and public
evaluation of impact of the programme to date.

c) Launching the ‘Safe Sleep’ campaign with the other LSCBs and Child Death
Overview Panels (CDOPSs) in the Pan-Hampshire and Isle of Wight area by
Summer 2019. Conducting a first phase evaluation by the end of the reporting
period.

d) Reviewing the joint HSCB/IOWSCB Neglect Toolkit and consider additional
information to include. Conducting an evaluation of the understanding, use of the
Strategy and Toolkit by frontline professionals, and assess impact on children and
families

Priority 2. Strengthening our Assurance Programmes

a) Responding to the outcomes of the Keeping Children Safe (Section 11) audit to
better promote staff understanding and awareness of key policies and
procedures.

b) Reviewing learning from Serious Case Reviews to test impact on frontline
practice.

Priority 3. Leadership and Transformation

a) Publishing new safeguarding partnership arrangements by 29 June 2019, and
full implementation by 29 September 2019 in line with Working Together 2018
statutory guidance.

b) Publishing new Child Death Overview Panel (CDOP) arrangements by 29 June
2019, and full implementation by 29 September 2019 in line with Working
Together 2018 statutory guidance.

c) With colleagues across the other LSCBs in Pan-Hampshire and Isle of Wight,
developing and implementing new Pan-Hampshire and Isle of Wight work
streams, including Exploitation and Health groups.

3.7 As part of the above, and in line with its scrutiny and assurance role, the
Partnership has maintained a close focus on any change programmes ongoing in
partner agencies, that may have an impact on the broader system. Safeguarding
Partners and Relevant Agencies are invited to provide briefings on a quarterly
basis on any transformation or change programmes so that the partnership has
early sight on any changes in service delivery or practice that may impact on
single agencies or broader partnership working.

Page 79



Co-production

4.1 The strength of the partnership continues through good communication and
information sharing and innovative work in response to safeguarding.

Remote working has promoted greater participation from colleagues who were
often covering more than one geographical area and supporting more than one
Local Safeguarding Partnership.

4.2 The HSCP response to the ‘new normal’ arrangements have allowed us to

adapt and build on our success further, at a time when resources are stretched,
the HSCP response has helped facilitate a strategic coordination of activity and

understanding of impact.

4.3 The HSCP, in line with its duties, continues to scrutinise and challenge
performance, identify, disseminate, and embed lessons, engage with children,
young people, and families, and evaluate the impact on outcomes.

4.4 Covid-19 has inevitably had an impact on the capacity of partners and
relevant agencies. Statutory Partners have had to balance increased demand to
continue support for working groups and engage in auditing.

4.5 In response to Covid-19, fortnightly Covid-19 meetings are held with senior
managers to share information and respond to any issues that arise. This has
ensured that responses to safeguarding is timely and effective.

4.6 Despite the demand issues, remote working has reduced travel time and
attendance for working groups, which has generally been good. Attendance for
our groups, including task and finish groups, has remained high.

The impact of Covid and increase in the complexity of work has impacted on
deadlines and some of our development work has been slowed by Covid-19.
However, we are progressing the work we set out in our business plan.

Conclusions

5.1 Note that the Safeguarding Children Partnership which is overseen by the
three Safeguarding partners is working effectively across Hampshire. Robust
delivery of business plan priorities is supporting collaborative working across
organisations and agencies who work with children, young people, and families to
ensure that they are effectively safeguarded and supported.

Page 80



REQUIRED CORPORATE AND LEGAL INFORMATION:

Links to the Strategic Plan

Hampshire maintains strong and sustainable economic | No
growth and prosperity:

People in Hampshire live safe, healthy, and independent | Yes
lives:

People in Hampshire enjoy a rich and diverse No
environment:
People in Hampshire enjoy being part of strong, No

inclusive communities:

Section 100 D - Local Government Act 1972 - background documents

The following documents discuss facts or matters on which this report, or an
important part of it, is based and have been relied upon to a material extent in
the preparation of this report. (NB: the list excludes published works and any
documents which disclose exempt or confidential information as defined in
the Act.)

Document Location
None

Page 81




1.

2.

EQUALITIES IMPACT ASSESSMENT:

Equality Duty

The County Council has a duty under Section 149 of the Equality Act 2010
(‘the Act’) to have due regard in the exercise of its functions to the need to:

Eliminate discrimination, harassment and victimisation and any other
conduct prohibited by or under the Act with regard to the protected
characteristics as set out in section 4 of the Act (age, disability, gender
reassignment, marriage and civil partnership, pregnancy and maternity,
race, religion or belief, sex and sexual orientation);

Advance equality of opportunity between persons who share a relevant
protected characteristic within section 149(7) of the Act (age, disability,
gender reassignment, pregnancy and maternity, race, religion or belief, sex
and sexual orientation) and those who do not share it;

Foster good relations between persons who share a relevant protected
characteristic within section 149(7) of the Act (see above) and persons who
do not share it.

Due regard in this context involves having due regard in particular to:

The need to remove or minimise disadvantages suffered by persons
sharing a relevant protected characteristic that are connected to that
characteristic.

- Take steps to meet the needs of persons sharing a relevant protected

characteristic that are different from the needs of persons who do not share
it.
Encourage persons sharing a relevant protected characteristic to

participate in public life or in any other activity in which participation by such
persons is disproportionally low.

Equalities Impact Assessment:

Race and equality impact assessment has been considered in the
development of this report and no adverse impact has been identified.

Page 82



“Hampshire

Safeguarding

Children
Partnership

Local Safeguarding Arrangements

Hampshire Safeguarding Children Partnership

HAMPSHIRE SAFEGUARDING CHILDREN PARTNERSHIP

Page 83



Contents

FOT@WOIT.....eiiee ettt et e s et e h e e et e s bt e e s bt e s bt e e s abeesabe e e sabeeeabe e e aateesabeeesabeesabeesneeesaneeennnes 3
INErOdUCTION AN CONTEXL...ceiutiiiiiiieiiie ettt ettt sttt et e st e e s bt e s bt e s sabe e sabeeesaseesabeeeaneeesaneeesnnes 4
Safeguarding Partnership Aims and ODJECTIVES.......cuiiiiieicieeciee et rre e e e st e e e sree e 4
TREESNOIAS ...ttt et e st e bt e e s a b e e s bt e e s a b e e e bt e e eab e e s bt e e sab e e s beeeaneeesbeeeenras 5
Yo 1 RVl oY S RPN 5
The Three Statutory Safeguarding Partners .........ccveccieeciee ittt rte e etee e st e e e e snee e sseeeenns 5
For Hampshire the lead representatives are: ... viieeiiiiiiee et 5
For Hampshire the agency representatives are:.....ccc e vieeeiiieee st 6
LCT=ToTo{ =T o] a1 ot LI AN =T TP PR 6
REIEVANT QENCIES .eeiieiiiie ettt ettt e e e ettt e e e et e e e sbteeeesbaeeeesbteeeesasteeeesstaeeesstaeessnsseeessnnes 7
The relevant agencies as named by the safeguarding partners are:......ccccoccvceeeveieeiiccee e, 7
Pan-Hampshire and Isle of Wight collaboration..............coociiiiiiiiii e 9
Hampshire Safeguarding Children PartNership ........oocuvieeeciiie et e 10
Y R T<T g aTTo T =T Y= e USRS 11
T L T=R T C o 18 o PPNt 11
o [ Tor T a oY oI U] o ={ oYU o NSRS 12
Scrutiny and ASSUranCe SUDSIOUP ......eeeicuiiieeeiiiiieeecieeeeeetteeeeciteeeeeeteeeeesasaeeessasaeeessasseeesansseeesanssneanan 12
Learning and INQUINY GIrOUP ...ecciccuieeeiciieeeeeitee e e ittee e eettee e e e ttee e esbteeeesbteeesesaneeeenseeeeeasseeeesnsenaesansenas 13
WOrkforce DEVEIOPMENT GrOUP ...eeecuuiieeeiiieeeeiiieeeeciteeeestte e e eetaeeeeeareeeeenseeeeenseeeeensseeeeensseneeennsenes 13
Independent Scrutiny, AUt aNd ASSUIMGNCE ....cccuueeeeeiiiieeeiiieeeecrteeeeetreeeeeraeeeessreeessssaeeesansseeesssseeanan 14
Governance & ACCOUNTADIIITY ....eiiiicuiiee e tre e e e bee e e e ebe e e e e eabee e e e nreeas 15
F N YU |l 2T=T o Yo o ARt 15
PartNEISNIPS ..eeeeiiiiee e et Error! Bookmark not defined.
Child Safeguarding PractiCe REVIEWS .........ciiiciieieiiiiie e ecitee ettt e e eette e e e etee e e e tae e e e ebee e e e enbeeeeeenbeeaeeennenas 16
Multi-Agency Professional Learning and DeVelopmeNnt ..........ooocuieieeciiiie et 17
FUNAING ATTANZEMENTS ..eiiiiiiiieiiiiiee ettt ettt e sttt e e s siee e e s sttt e e s satreesssteeeessbaeeesassseeesasseeeesansseeesnssenesnn 18
Safeguarding Children Partnership TEAM .......ciociiiiiie et ee et esnee e saree s 18
V0ICE aNd ENGAZEMENT coiiitiiii ittt sttt e e et ee e e s sbee e e s sbeeeessabteeessabeaeessstaeessastneessses 18
Performance Data and INtEIlIGENCE ......eeeieiiiieieee et e e e sareeaean 18
Multi-Agency Procedures and GUIANCE ........cceccuiiieiiiiiieiciieie e ccitee e e e e et e e esar e e sstae e e ssaereeeenareeaens 19
Review of the safeguarding arrangemMeENTS.........c.uviiiiiiiiiiciiiie e e s e e e are e e 19
.
HAMPSHIRE SAFEGUARDING CHILDREN PARTNERSHIP 1

Page 84



TMIESCAIES c.eevvvevieiveeeetsiiitereereeeeuerereresereaereresesesesteessserssessasstsssrsessresssesssarens Error! Bookmark not defined.

Appendix 1 - Hampshire, Isle of Wight, Portsmouth & Southampton (HIPS) Safeguarding Children
Partnership Executive Group ArrangemMENTS .....ccuuiiieiiieeeiiiieeeeciteeessireeessreeeessreeeesssseeeessssseeessnseeesns 19

FISUIE L ettt ettt e e e e e ettt e e e e e e s bbb eeeeeeeeesansbbteeeeeesasnnbbbeeeeeeesannnrreaaeeas 23

HAMPSHIRE SAFEGUARDING CHILDREN PARTNERSHIP 2

Page 85



Foreword

Welcome to the Hampshire multi-agency safeguarding arrangements, known locally as the
Hampshire Safeguarding Children Partnership (HSCP). These Local Safeguarding
Arrangements are published in line with the requirements outlined in Working Together
2018.

As leaders we recognise that safeguarding children cannot be achieved in isolation from other
partnerships, or our communities. This has been an area of strength in Hampshire in recent
years. Our vision is founded on the belief that safeguarding is everyone’s business and that,
in conjunction with other strategic boards and partnerships, children and young people in
Hampshire are safe and achieve their potential. As a safeguarding partnership we have to be
clear about how we do this and what this means for partner organisations, children, young
people, and their families as well as the wider community.

The multi-agency partnership in Hampshire is robust and effective, with clear commitment
from senior leaders. We believe the changes outlined in this document will enhance the
already strong partnerships we have in Hampshire. The development of the new partnership
arrangements has given us the opportunity to review and change some of our ways of
working, building on strengths within the good partnership relationships that already exist
but focusing on how we can make a real difference to multi-agency frontline practice to
improve outcomes for Hampshire children, young people and their families.

We aim to achieve these improvements by developing and spreading good practice based on
what we know works well and is evidenced based. This ensures a proactive and responsive
approach to the needs of children, young people and families in the area and drives
opportunities to shape and influence policy development leading to improved practice and
outcomes.

This plan of arrangements, known hereafter as the plan, sets out the arrangements for us, the
safeguarding partners to work together and with other agencies, to identify and safeguard
children in need of protection in Hampshire.

D' &7

\\\\
Steve Crocker Ellen McNicholas Rachel Farrell
Director of Children’s Services Director of Quality & Board Nurse Chief Superintendent
Hampshire County Council West Hampshire Clinical Commissioning Hampshire Constabulary
Group (CCG) (on behalf of the five
Hampshire CCGs)
HAMPSHIRE SAFEGUARDING CHILDREN PARTNERSHIP 3

Page 86



Introduction and Context

Helping and protecting children through a co-ordinated approach to safeguarding children is
everyone’s responsibility. Through collaborative working across organisations and agencies
who work with children, young people and families, including those who work with
parents/carers, the ambition of our arrangements is that everyone can recognise, respond
and fulfil their responsibilities to ensure that children, young people and families are
effectively safeguarded and supported.

Organisations, agencies and practitioners should be aware of, and comply with, this plan set
out by the safeguarding partners.

The safeguarding arrangements have developed to build on the strengths of the previous
arrangements under the Hampshire Safeguarding Children Board. The learning and
improvement framework, which included clear and robust Local Child Safeguarding Practice
Review processes, multi-agency audits and a comprehensive multi-agency training
programme, has been retained with some additions to enable the new Partnership to
extend its programme of scrutiny functions and respond to changes in statutory guidance.

Safeguarding Partnership Aims and Objectives

To ensure that the children of Hampshire are safeguarded, and their welfare promoted, the
Hampshire Safeguarding Children Partnership will:

e Work effectively and collaboratively towards shared priorities to achieve improved
outcomes for our children.

e Build working relationships between partners which support continuous
improvement, professional curiosity, constructive challenge, and enable partners to
hold each other to account for the outcomes we deliver for children.

e Be self-reflective, open and committed to learning and improvement.

e Embed the learning from local and national safeguarding reviews, and local scrutiny
and assurance practices to improve the way children are safeguarded.

e Work, and share information, proactively to enable the early identification and
response to new areas of safeguarding and emerging themes.

e Listen and respond to children and young people, and adult victims / survivors of
child abuse to inform how services are delivered.

e Ensure services for children and families in Hampshire support parents and carers to
provide the best possible care for their children and enable families to live together
where possible.

HAMPSHIRE SAFEGUARDING CHILDREN PARTNERSHIP 4

Page 87



e Facilitate collaborative working beyond organisational boundaries and agency
constraints to deliver best outcomes for children and families.

Thresholds

The safeguarding partners will oversee regular review and dissemination of the Hampshire
Thresholds Document. This document will be available to all professionals via the
Partnership’s website.

Legislative Context

The Hampshire Safeguarding Children Partnership (HSCP) is established in accordance with
the Children and Social Work Act 2017 (the Act) and Working Together to Safeguard
Children 2018 statutory guidance. The HSCP provides the safeguarding arrangements under
which the safeguarding partners and relevant agencies work together to coordinate their
safeguarding services, identify and respond to the needs of children in Hampshire,
commission and publish local child safeguarding practice reviews and provide scrutiny to
ensure the effectiveness of the arrangements.

Working Together 2018 explains that the three safeguarding partners in relation to a local
authority area are defined under the Children Act 2004 (as amended by the Children and
Social Work Act 2017) as:

e the Local Authority

e a Clinical Commissioning Group for an area any part of which falls within the local
authority area

e the Chief Officer of Police for an area any part of which falls within the local
authority area

The Three Statutory Safeguarding Partners

For each of these three partners, Working Together 2018 defines the lead representatives
from each as ‘the Local Authority Chief Executive, the Accountable Officer of the Clinical
Commissioning Group and a Chief Officer of Police’.

For Hampshire the lead representatives are:

John Coughlan, Chief Executive
Hampshire County Council

Maggie Maclsaac, Chief Executive
Hampshire and Isle of Wight Clinical Commissioning Group (on behalf of the five Hampshire
CCGs)

HAMPSHIRE SAFEGUARDING CHILDREN PARTNERSHIP 5

Page 88



Rachel Farrell, Chief Superintendent
Hampshire Constabulary

As set out in Working Together 2018, the lead representatives can delegate their functions,
although they retain accountability for any actions taken on behalf of their agency. In

Hampshire, the lead representatives have identified the following senior officers in their
respective agencies who have responsibility and authority for ensuring full participation
with these arrangements:

For Hampshire, the agency representatives are:

Steve Crocker, Director of Children’s Services
Hampshire County Council

Ellen McNicholas, Director of Quality & Board Nurse
West Hampshire Clinical Commissioning Group (on behalf of the 5 Hampshire CCGs)

Rachel Farrell , Chief Superintendent
Hampshire Constabulary

The representatives, or those they delegate authority to, will:

e Speak with authority for the safeguarding partner they represent.

e Take decisions on behalf of their organisation or agency and commit them on policy,
resourcing and practice matters.

e Hold their own organisation or agency to account on how effectively they participate
and implement the local arrangements.

Geographical Area

The area covered by the arrangements is defined by the Hampshire County Council local
authority boundary. It is acknowledged that partners to these arrangements may have
responsibility for services outside this area, either due to their organisational boundaries
overlapping other local authority areas or because they have responsibilities for children
living in another area. Arrangements for how the HSCP will work with its neighbouring
partnerships in the Pan-Hampshire and Isle of Wight area are outlined further below.

HAMPSHIRE SAFEGUARDING CHILDREN PARTNERSHIP 6

Page 89



Relevantagencies

The strength of local partnership working is predicated on safeguarding partners working
together collaboratively with relevant agencies whose involvement the safeguarding
partners consider is required to safeguard and promote the welfare of children.

The safeguarding partners are obliged to set out within their arrangements which
organisations and agencies are required to work as part of those arrangements to safeguard
and promote the welfare of local children. These organisations and agencies are referred to
as relevant agencies and when nominated by the safeguarding partners as relevant agency
organisations, should act in accordance with the arrangements

Acting in accordance with the safeguarding arrangements requires safeguarding partners
and relevant agencies to work together and:

e Fully engage with the Hampshire Safeguarding Children Partnership functions as set
out within this document.

e Provide information which enables and assists the safeguarding partners to perform
their functions to safeguard and promote the welfare of children in their area,
including as related to local and national child safeguarding practice reviews.

e Ensure that their organisation works in accordance with the safeguarding procedures
and protocols approved by the partnership.

e Have robust safeguarding policies and procedures in place specifically relevant to
their organisation.

e Provide evidence of the above to the Partnership when requested as part of its
scrutiny arrangements.

e Participate fully in multi-agency audits and assurance activities when required.

The relevant agencies as named by the safeguarding partners are:
e Ministry of Defence

e District/Borough/City Councils

e Child and Family Court Advisory Service (CAFCASS) (listed in WT2018 but who have
adopted a national position of not attending)

e Education establishments (primary, secondary, independent, post-16 years and
special schools, Pupil Referral units and Early Years Settings).

e Hampshire County Council, Adults’ Health and Care
e Hampshire County Council, Children and Families

e Hampshire County Council, Education and Inclusion
e Hampshire County Council, Public Health

e Hampshire Constabulary

HAMPSHIRE SAFEGUARDING CHILDREN PARTNERSHIP 7

Page 90



e Hampshire Fire & Rescue Service

e Hampshire Hospitals NHS Foundation Trust

e National Probation Service in the Hampshire Local Authority Area
e Hampshire & Isle of Wight Community Rehabilitation Company

e Hampshire Youth Offending Team

e NHS Clinical Commissioning Groups (CCG) (West Hampshire CCG, Fareham and
Gosport CCG, North Hampshire CCG, South Eastern Hampshire CCG, North East
Hampshire and Farnham CCG).

e NHS England, Local Area Team
e Health providers:
— Southern Health NHS Foundation Trust
— Hampshire Hospitals NHS Foundation Trust
— Frimley Park NHS Foundation Trust
— University of Southampton NHS Foundation Trust
— Portsmouth Hospitals NHS Foundation Trust
— South Central Ambulance Service
— North Hampshire Urgent Care
— Solent NHS Trust
— Sussex Partnership NHS Foundation Trust
— All Primary Care providers commissioned by the five Hampshire CCGs.
— Partnering Health Limited (PHL)
— Independent Providers
— Commissioned Providers of Substance Misuse Services

e The Office of the Police and Crime Commissioner (for the Hampshire Constabulary
force area)

e Commissioned Providers of Domestic Abuse Services
e Voluntary Sector

e Winchester Diocese

e Portsmouth Diocese

e Sporting organisations via the Hampshire and Isle of Wight County Sports
Partnership (Energise Me). This includes national sporting bodies who have branches
operating in Hampshire such as the Football Agency (FA) for example.

e lLanguage Schools

HAMPSHIRE SAFEGUARDING CHILDREN PARTNERSHIP 8

Page 91



All schools are named as relevant partners. Schools are represented on the main
Partnership Board by Head Teacher representatives of Primary Schools, Secondary Schools,
Post-16 years establishments, Independent Schools, Special Schools and Pupil Referral Units.
Early Years settings are also represented via the Hampshire County Council Services for
Young Children Early Years team.

Hampshire does have a local authority secure children’s home in its borders (Swanwick
Lodge). Hampshire also has a specialist, secure mental health inpatient unit that provides
assessment, treatment, and care for young people (Austen and Bluebird House). These are
managed by the Local Authority and Southern Health Foundation Trust, both of whom are
represented in the Partnership.

There are no youth custody facilities within the geographical boundaries of the partnership.

The Lead Member for Children (Hampshire County Council) will be a participating observer
of the HSCP. This includes attending meetings and receiving all its written reports.

Whilst the legislation and statutory guidance draws a distinction between safeguarding
partners and relevant agencies to ensure clarity around accountability, it is clear that all
members of the Hampshire Safeguarding Children Partnership have a shared responsibility
to work collaboratively to provide targeted support to children and families.

This document describes the arrangements through which the statutory safeguarding
partners and those named as relevant agencies, work together to safeguard, and promote
the welfare of children in Hampshire.

If your organisation is not named and you think it should be, please get in touch with the
HSCP by emailing HSCP@hants.gov.uk to discuss this.

Pan-Hampshire and Isle of Wight collaboration

The statutory safeguarding partners in Hampshire have agreed to work in partnership with
the statutory safeguarding partners for Isle of Wight, Portsmouth and Southampton, to
ensure coherence in safeguarding arrangements across the wider geographical area. The
arrangements for Hampshire and Isle of Wight collaboration are known locally as ‘HIPS’ and
are set out in Appendix 1 to this document. The description of arrangements in Hampshire
in the paragraphs below need to be read alongside the description of the collaboration
arrangements in Appendix 1.

HAMPSHIRE SAFEGUARDING CHILDREN PARTNERSHIP 9

Page 92


mailto:HSCP@hants.gov.uk

Hampshire Safeguarding Children Partnership

A diagram of the Partnership and its related subgroups is shown here:

Learning and Inquiry

Group Safeguarding Briefings
Assistant Director of Partnership Team
Children's Services

Scrutiny Group
Head of Sector Led
- "@ Improvement and Service

i, \ Development, Children's
_—

| Business Group Services
Partnership Team '

£6 abed

HAMPSHIRE SAFEGUARDING CHILDREN PARTNERSHIP 10



Partnership-Board

All relevant agencies and safeguarding partners are members of the Hampshire
Safeguarding Children’s Partnership Board. Attendees are expected to have a good
understanding of safeguarding and be of a senior level to represent their organisation or
sector. The partnership meetings will be led by the Independent Chair and meet quarterly.
Summary of functions include:

e Facilitating communication between all the safeguarding partners and relevant
agencies, strengthening working relationships between organisations.

e Means of consulting with senior safeguarding leads in agencies / sectors.

e Dissemination of learning from Local Child Safeguarding Practice Reviews and
assurance activities.

e Identifying emerging issues to inform priority setting and raising awareness of
emerging issues across the partnership.

e |dentifying challenges to safeguarding work and contributing towards the
development of solutions

e Linking with other strategic partnerships including the Health and Wellbeing Board,
Adult Safeguarding Board, Local Family Justice Board, Strategic MAPPA Board,
Corporate Parenting Board and Community Safety Partnerships.

Business Group

The Business Group comprises those with lead responsibility from each of the safeguarding
partners and the chairs of the subgroups of the main Partnership Board. The group has
overall responsibility for the safeguarding arrangements. Summary of functions:

e Defining how the safeguarding arrangements will operate.

e Ensuring the safeguarding arrangements are working effectively.

¢ Identify and escalate concerns regarding the delivery of services and/or interagency
working regarding the delivery of services and/or interagency working

e Setting the strategic priorities for the partnership.

e Supporting and engaging with relevant agencies through the Partnership Group.

e Ensuring that local and national learning is implemented.

e Maintaining a risk register that identifies strategic risks to the safeguarding of
children in the area and the operation of the safeguarding arrangements.

e Produce and publish a yearly report on behalf of the partnership.

Wherever possible, decisions will be made by consensus. Where this is not possible,
decisions of the Business Group will be taken by a majority vote of the safeguarding
partners.

HAMPSHIRE SAFEGUARDING CHILDREN PARTNERSHIP 11

Page 94



Education subgroup

This group is chaired by a member of the partnership nominated by the Business Group. The
core membership of the group is made up of senior education leaders from primary,
secondary and special schools including academies; further education colleges; independent
education establishments, pupil referral units and senior local authority officers within the
Education and Inclusion branch of Children’s Services. Summary of functions:

e Provide a forum for strategic discussion of child protection and safeguarding in
educational establishments across Hampshire.

e Develop and review new and relevant safeguarding guidance and disseminate
information accordingly.

e Consider HSCP decisions and recommendations relating to educational
establishments and to ensure that they are implemented through a co-ordinated
education response.

e Monitor compliance with $175/5157 Education Act 2002 and ‘Keeping children safe
in education: for schools and colleges’ (2020).

e Ensure that there is appropriate discussion and dissemination of lessons emerging
from Local Child Safeguarding Practice Reviews audits and best practice and to
ensure required actions are completed, reviewed, and monitored for impact.

e Review local, regional and national guidance relevant to educational establishments
in relation to child protection and safeguarding.

e Identify and address concerns in relation to the delivery of services and/or
interagency working within the educational sector.

Scrutiny Subgroup

This group is chaired by a member of the partnership nominated by the Business Group. The
core membership of the group is made up of senior operational managers from the
safeguarding partners who act as decision makers for their organisations. Summary of
functions:

e Develop an annual scrutiny and assurance programme derived from the annual
business plan, emerging safeguarding issues and inspections of services.

e Commission audits and reviews of safeguarding arrangements and practice within
partner agencies.

e Maintain a multi-agency dataset of agreed safeguarding indicators and provide a
quarterly analysis on trends and themes to the Partnership Board.

e Ensure that the ‘voice of the child’ is considered in scrutiny and assurance work
undertaken.

e Ensure findings identified from audits, including good practice, are disseminated to
front-line professionals.

e Monitor agency compliance with Section 11 of the Children Act 2004, challenge
organisations where appropriate and report findings to the Partnership Board.

HAMPSHIRE SAFEGUARDING CHILDREN PARTNERSHIP 12

Page 95



e Ensure actions arising from quality assurance activities are completed, reviewed and
monitored for impact.
e Escalate risks to the Business Group and Partnership Board through the Risk Register.

Learning and Inquiry Group

This group is chaired by a member of the partnership nominated by the Business Group. The
core membership of the group is made up of senior operational managers from the
safeguarding partners who act as decision makers for their organisations. Representatives
from relevant agencies are invited to contribute to the group depending on the nature of
the cases involved. Summary of functions:

e Undertaking a ‘Rapid Review’ of cases in accordance with the requirements in
Working Together 2018

e Making recommendations about whether to undertake a Local Child Safeguarding
Practice Reviews / or to recommend a National Learning Review.

e Receive details of cases which have undergone a Rapid Review and undertake
further analysis when requested by the safeguarding partners.

e Draft Terms of Reference for Local Child Safeguarding Practice Reviews Oversee the
conduct of and / or undertake Local Child Safeguarding Practice Reviews

e Report to the Partnership Board with review findings and proposed actions.

e Dissemination of learning via the Partnership Board and the Workforce and
Development group.

e Informing the Partnership Board and relevant subgroups of emerging issues and risks

Decisions on recommendations arising from Rapid Reviews will be made by the three
safeguarding partners. They will be shared with the Independent Chair to allow independent
oversight and scrutiny of the recommendations and decisions.

Learning arising from local reviews will be shared with the HIPS Executive as outlined in
Appendix 1.

Workforce Development Group

This group is chaired by a member of the partnership nominated by the Business Group. The
core membership of the group is made up of senior operational managers from the
safeguarding partners who act as decision makers for their organisations. Summary of
functions:

e |dentify multi-agency learning and development needs by undertaking an annual
needs analysis.
e Develop, maintain and review a multi-agency learning policy.

HAMPSHIRE SAFEGUARDING CHILDREN PARTNERSHIP 13

Page 96



e Agree a costed programme of learning events and contribute to commissioning
arrangements on behalf of the Partnership Board.

e Ensure that learning events remain up to date, relevant and provide local context.

e Ensure that the ‘voice of the child’ is considered in the commissioning of the multi-
agency learning programme.

e Ensure that learning from audits, inspections and Local Child Safeguarding Practice
Reviews is incorporated within the multi-agency learning programme.

e Consider opportunities for children to contribute to the Partnership Board’s annual
conference.

e Consider, through member updates, agency compliance with in-house and multi-
agency training and to escalate risks to the Business Group and Partnership Board
through the risk register

e Monitor and evaluate the effectiveness of the programme of learning through
observations and impact assessments.

e Work with other strategic boards to maximise co-commissioning of learning events
to achieve efficiency and promote a family approach.

Independent Scrutiny, Audit and Assurance

The Hampshire Safeguarding Children’s Partnership has an Independent Chair who will also
act as an Independent Scrutineer. The Chair is appointed by, and accountable to, the lead
representatives from the safeguarding partners. The appointment of the Independent Chair,
should, in the local authority’s case, be subject to the approval of the Chief Executive. The
Chair facilitates the Board’s business, allowing all Board member agencies to participate
fully without any perceived or actual bias towards any one agency. The Chair can also
intervene or mediate in issues where there are differences of opinion or tensions in
partnership activity. The Chair acts as a critical friend, encouraging reflection on practice
and an openness to improving services and provide an objective assessment of the
effectiveness of the safeguarding arrangements including how they are working for children
and families as well as practitioners.

The Hampshire Safeguarding Children’s Partnership continues to explore a range of
additional scrutiny options within its arrangements including the use of peer scrutineers. A
rolling annual programme of peer scrutiny visits has been implemented, providing an
opportunity for Partnership agencies to visit other settings, meet with frontline staff and
gain a better understanding of how safeguarding duties are discharged in practice.

The Hampshire Safeguarding Children’s Partnership Learning and Improvement Framework
describes the partnership approach to multi-agency audits. HSCP will lead an annual
programme of scrutiny activities on themed areas to be agreed by the Partnership and
overseen by the Scrutiny Group. The programme will reflect the priorities for safeguarding
children in Hampshire and will be informed by:

HAMPSHIRE SAFEGUARDING CHILDREN PARTNERSHIP 14

Page 97



e Local Child Safeguarding Practice Reviews.

e Performance indicators.

e The need to further explore issues that have caused of concern, including those
highlighted through previous audits.

e Feedback from learning and development, management forums or policy
implementation.

The programme will be led by members of the Safeguarding Children Partnership Team and
professionals from Partnership member agencies. Recommendations for practice change
will be made to the Partnership Board as necessary and the Scrutiny Group will oversee
implementation and monitoring of these changes. Audit findings will be shared with HIPS
Exec Group as set out in Appendix 1.

Governance & Accountability

The HSCP has an independent chairperson who will hold all agencies to account.

Each statutory Partnership Board member agency has set out their will set out their
agency's responsibilities and has clear line of accountability, including delegated functions,
for safeguarding and promoting the welfare of children.

The HSCP is responsible for coordinating and ensuring the effectiveness of work undertaken
by local agencies to safeguard and promote the welfare of children, but it is not accountable
for their operational work. Each agency retains their own existing lines of accountability for

their services.

The HSCP does not have the power to direct other organisations; however, it will bring
concerns to the attention of the agency concerned and the Partnership Board and escalate
to other bodies where appropriate.

The HSCP has a clear work programme, including measurable objectives, and a budget. The
budget is agreed by the three safeguarding partners and outlines the agencies that are
required to contribute to the Partnership and the level of financial contribution.

Annual Report

The HSCP will publish an annual report which enables the work of the Partnership to be
scrutinised by the Independent Reviewer, safeguarding partners and other local partners,
and broader partnership bodies such as the Health and Wellbeing Board and the Children's
Trust. The annual report will provide an analysis of the work of the partnership in
Hampshire and also the work undertaken with partners in the Pan Hampshire and Isle of
Wight area. The report will include:

HAMPSHIRE SAFEGUARDING CHILDREN PARTNERSHIP 15

Page 98



e A summary of the activities undertaken by the partnership.

e Details of child safeguarding practice reviews undertaken during the year and action
taken to improve practice.

e Evidence of the impact of the work of the partnership, including training, on
outcomes for children and families from early help to looked-after children and care
leavers.

e An analysis of any areas where there has been little or no evidence of progress on
agreed priorities.

e Arecord of decisions and actions taken by the partners in the report’s period (or
planned to be taken) to implement the recommendations of any local and national
child safeguarding practice reviews, including any resulting improvements.

e Ways in which the partners have sought and utilised feedback from children and
families to inform their work and influence service provision.

e Areview of the use of restraint in secure settings.

e The Independent Chair’s assessment of the effectiveness of the partnership
arrangements over the preceding year.

e Any changes to the safeguarding arrangements.

The Hampshire Safeguarding Children’s Partnership will be independent and will not be
subordinate to, nor subsumed within, other local structures. However, to be effective, the
Hampshire Safeguarding Children’s Partnership arrangements will link to other strategic
partnership work happening locally to support children and families. This will include other
public boards including the Health and Wellbeing Board, the Children’s Trust, Hampshire
Adult Safeguarding Board, Channel Panels and the PREVENT Board, Community Safety
Partnerships, the Local Family Justice Board and the Strategic MAPPA Board (Multi-Agency
Public Protection Arrangements).

Child Safeguarding Practice Reviews

To deliver on the key functions outlined in Working Together 2018, the partnership will
oversee a Learning and Inquiry Group (LIG) which will consider:

e Serious child safeguarding cases that raise issues of importance to the local area.
e 'Near misses'.
e Cases where there has been good practice.

The LIG will conduct Rapid Reviews and recommend the notification of incidents to the
National Child Safeguarding Practice Review Panel.

All safeguarding partners and relevant agencies are expected to refer cases to the LIG for
consideration, to provide case file information to any case under review and to participate
in learning events.

HAMPSHIRE SAFEGUARDING CHILDREN PARTNERSHIP 16

Page 99



The Learning and Enquiry Group reports quarterly into the Business Group and Partnership
Board with summary information on all the cases considered, any findings and its
recommendations for improvement. It will also provide detailed analysis of findings for the
Annual Report. The Learning and Enquiry Group makes recommendations to the Board for
the dissemination of learning through multi-agency training and professional development.

Findings from case reviews are also shared with the HIPS Executive as outlined in Appendix
1.

Multi-Agency Professional Learning and
Development

Locally, there is an ongoing commitment to developing a consistent approach and access to
good quality multi-agency training, which is underpinned by robust evaluation processes to
ensure that the training programme is clearly focused on the needs of partners to deliver
effective services. In addition to the needs analysis, the training programme is informed by
case audit processes, local and national Child Safeguarding Practice Reviews, and
contemporary research.

The partnership will provide multi-agency learning opportunities guided by learning needs
analyses and learning from reviews and audits. The partnership is committed to providing a
comprehensive multi-agency training programme which includes the following elements:

e Core safeguarding training courses — these provide a foundation for good multi-
agency safeguarding practice with the opportunity to attend refresher events to
keep knowledge up to date. These courses are offered regularly throughout the year
to enable all partners to attend as and when required.

e Subject-specific workshops, conferences, practitioner forums and seminars — these
provide an opportunity to explore safeguarding children issues in greater depth.
These events vary from year to year, depending on the safeguarding themes
identified both nationally and locally.

The Learning and Development Programme is flexible and adaptable to ensure that the
needs of the partnership workforce are met, and additional courses will be arranged
according to demand.

HSCP events are available free of charge to all safeguarding partners/relevant agencies, and
organisations who contribute financially to the Partnership. Other organisations may access
training however, charges may apply. During 2020 the training offer has been expanded to
include a range of virtual and e-learning courses.

HAMPSHIRE SAFEGUARDING CHILDREN PARTNERSHIP 17

Page 100



Funding Arrangements

The funding arrangements for the HSCP have been agreed for 2020/21 and will comprise of
contributions by partner organisations at the same level as previously provided to the
Hampshire Safeguarding Children Board 2019/20. Accommodation, legal and
communications services are provided by Hampshire County Council.

A review of the funding arrangements was undertaken during 2020 to enable the
safeguarding partners to consider the future resourcing requirements, agree the level of
funding provided by each safeguarding partner and any contributions from relevant
agencies.

Safeguarding Children Partnership Team

The work of the HSCP will be led and coordinated by the Safeguarding Children Partnership
Team. The Team are funded by the financial contributions as set out above. The team work
closely with the Safeguarding Partners, Independent Chair and Scrutineer, and partner
agencies to ensure the partnership operates effectively and fulfils its statutory
requirements.

Voice and Engagement

The voice and experience of children and families will be central to how safeguarding
arrangements work effectively.

Whenever a Local Child Safeguarding Practice Review is undertaken, the consideration will
be given to how best to engage with children, parents and carers and support them to
effectively contribute to the review. The findings from any reviews will be explained to
those involved on completion of the review and prior to any publication.

Multi-agency audits will include views and opinions from children (where appropriate) and /
or their families and will be used to inform recommendations for practice improvement.

Multi-agency learning programmes will include collation of the views and experience of
children and families in receiving the support and help they need to safeguard children. The
HSCP will directly engage with young people’s forums in Hampshire and use the voice and
feedback from these groups to inform products and initiatives as well as receive feedback
on the services provided to them.

Performance Data and Intelligence

The Learning and Improvement Framework for the partnership sets out the way
performance information is provided to the Quality Assurance Group to inform its

HAMPSHIRE SAFEGUARDING CHILDREN PARTNERSHIP 18

Page 101



assessment of the effectiveness of the help being provided to children and families
(including early help). Data relating to key safeguarding processes and particularly
vulnerable groups of children will be provided each quarter with an analysis that provides an
explanation of any trends and issues for attention of the group. This information will be
collated by the Safeguarding Children Partnership Team, reviewed and analysed to inform a
quarterly report outlining key trends and themes, recommendations for further scrutiny and
identifying areas for potential strategic intervention.

This will be supplemented by specific reports on topics that have been identified by the
Scrutiny Group as requiring assurance monitoring. The framework will be subject to regular
review by the Business Group and therefore the issues covered may vary according to the
needs of children in Hampshire and risks identified.

Multi-Agency Procedures and Guidance

The Pan Hampshire and Isle of Wight safeguarding children procedures apply across
Hampshire, Isle of Wight, Portsmouth and Southampton (HIPS). They provide a clear
framework under which organisations will work together to safeguard children. The
procedures are updated regularly to take account of local and national learning and any
changes in legislation or statutory guidance. Additional guidance and procedures that cover
a range of specific circumstances are included and the following areas of safeguarding are
addressed:

e Risks, indicators and the protection of children with disabilities.
e Resolving professional disagreements and escalating.

e Information sharing between practitioners.

e Safe recruitment, selection and retention of staff and volunteers.
e Expectations around whistleblowing mechanisms and training.

e Children living away from home.

All member organisations of the HSCP should have in place appropriate, robust safeguarding
policies and procedures that should be compatible and aligned to the HIPS interagency
procedures. These ‘single agency’ procedures must include the escalation process within
that organisation and clear whistleblowing procedures.

Review of the safeguarding arrangements

These arrangements were reviewed by the safeguarding partners in November 2020 with the
next review being scheduled for 2023 and every three years thereafter. Additional or
amended statutory guidance will be responded to at the time of publication.

Appendix 1 - Hampshire, Isle of Wight, Portsmouth & Southampton (HIPS) Safeguarding Children
Partnership Executive Group Arrangements

HAMPSHIRE SAFEGUARDING CHILDREN PARTNERSHIP 19

Page 102



1.

Background

1.1.

1.2

1.3.

Working Together 2018 (WT2018) provides flexibility for safeguarding arrangements
to operate across larger areas/multiple local authority boundaries. Each local
authority area retains responsibility for their own local safeguarding arrangements,
under the auspices of the three safeguarding partners (local authority, police, and
health via the CCG).

For many agencies and professionals who work across more than one of the local
authority areas, there is benefit in greater joined-up working on strategic issues and
common themes.

Given that each local area retains some degree of local arrangement the
Hampshire, Isle of Wight, Portsmouth, and Southampton (HIPS) Executive Group,
supported by some specific four-area subgroups works alongside the four local
partnerships.

Desired outcomes

2.1. The overarching outcome of these arrangements is that children in Hampshire,

Portsmouth, Southampton, and the Isle of Wight should be safeguarded from harm
based on the following principles:

e All work is designed to ensure that services are delivered in the best interests of

the child.

e There will be no duplication of existing work but provide strategic direction and

challenge to enable enhanced co-ordination of activity and understanding of
impact.

e Work will provide a clear route for escalation of any system-wide issues and an

agreed forum for the Safeguarding Partners to collectively fulfil their statutory
duties.

e Work will ensure that we make the best use of collective resources.

HAMPSHIRE SAFEGUARDING CHILDREN PARTNERSHIP 20

Page 103



Work will be established within the existing resources (both financial and in
professional time / hours and terms) and should not incur additional cost to
agencies.

Local partnerships will continue to identify their own priorities in addition to any
identified at a strategic level by the HIPS Executive.

Local areas will continue to ensure that the voices of children and families are
clearly represented in local partnership work.

3. Role of HIPS arrangements and relationship with Local Safeguarding Children

4.

Partnership

The role of the HIPS Executive Group is to provide strategic direction and coordination of
safeguarding activity across the pan Hampshire and Isle of Wight area, to promote best
practice, implement local and national learning and identify issues requiring strategic
intervention by the Safeguarding Partners across the HIPS area.

Membership and frequency of HIPS Executive

5.1. To support this role and relationship of mutual accountability, the membership of the
HIPS Executive will be focussed towards the three Safeguarding Partners across each
of the four HIPS areas, namely:

Directors of Children’s Services from each of the represented local authorities.
Directors of Children’s Services will represent education establishments (those
who are maintained by the Local Authority) including Early Years services.

Hampshire Constabulary represented through the Chief Superintendent with lead
safeguarding responsibility.

Health, represented by Clinical Commissioning Groups (CCGs) of West Hampshire
CCG, Hampshire and Isle of Wight CCG, Portsmouth CCG and Southampton CCG.
Clinical Commissioning Group representatives will represent the health sector in
their local area. They will ensure dialogue with other health commissioning bodies
across the HIPS area, namely NHS England (South East) and NHS England Specialist
Commissioning.

The Safeguarding Partners have also invited the Regional Schools Commissioner
to attend the group to represent Academy educational establishments.

HAMPSHIRE SAFEGUARDING CHILDREN PARTNERSHIP 21

Page 104



5.2. The Safeguarding Partners will act as the conduits and facilitate the flow of
information and business between the HIPS Executive and the local Safeguarding
Children Partnerships.

6. Chairing of a HIPS Executive

6.1. The HIPS Executive will be chaired by an Independent Chair recruited by the
Safeguarding Partners for this role.

7. Related groups

7.1. The HIPS Executive will convene four standing subgroups where there is a clear
benefit to coordinating specific areas of business across the HIPS area:

e Health group — This group coordinates safeguarding business across the health
economy across the HIPS area. The group takes the lead on the promotion and
implementation of any best practice and learning for the health sector. It should
be noted that the Isle of Wight holds its own local Health Subgroup across Children
and Adults but core members from that group, including the Chair, attend the HIPS
Health Group to ensure alignment and cross-communication of health themes.

e Child Exploitation group —This group develops a shared understanding of the
threat/need in respect of child exploitation, including patterns of activity that may
reflect the organised exploitation of children; identify risks requiring strategic
intervention and operational issues that can be dealt with more appropriately
through the existing l